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About Fabtech
Fabtech is a premier transnational pharmaceutical 
engineering company and a dominant force in the industry, 
offering end-to-end solutions across the pharmaceutical, 
biotechnology, and healthcare sectors. We focus on 
bio clean air, clean water, and process requirements, 
delivering solutions that span the entire project lifecycle 
for our customers. Our expertise covers various dosage 
forms, including liquids, solids, and semisolids, across the 
pharmaceutical value chain. Our turnkey engineering 
services encompass market analysis, disease profiling, 
custom equipment design, and the application of advanced 
technologies to ensure efficient, reliable, and sustainable 
project execution. Headquartered in Mumbai, India, Fabtech 
has strategically established regional offices in Dubai, 
Saudi Arabia, Egypt, Nigeria, Jordan, the UK, Algeria, and Sri 
Lanka. Over the years, we have successfully expanded our 
global footprint, earning a strong international reputation. 
For more information, visit www.fabtechnologies.com

Our Mission
At Fabtech, our mission is to pioneer and establish pharmaceutical, 
biotechnological, and healthcare capabilities that ensure universal 
accessibility and affordability of life-saving medicines. Our mission 
extends far beyond project completion, as we strive to make a lasting, 
positive impact on society, enabling better health outcomes across 
all demographics.

Our Values
Reliability, Respect, and Responsibility—these principles form the 
bedrock of Fabtech’s ethos. Deeply embedded in our organizational 
culture, they guide our growth with integrity, professionalism, and a 
commitment to excellence.

Responsible ReliableRespectful
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Global Reach and  
Impact

With a remarkable journey spanning 27 years, Fabtech has grown into a global powerhouse in 
life sciences engineering, widely recognized for delivering turnkey solutions to pharmaceutical, 
biotechnology, and healthcare companies worldwide. Our extensive portfolio includes 
750+ projects across 62 countries, impacting the lives of over 75 million individuals.  
We take immense pride in being a trusted partner in life sciences engineering, contributing 
significantly to the advancement of healthcare and the betterment of communities.

Total Customers Global Projects Countries Lives Impacted

2000+ 750+ 62+ 75M+

We are painting the world blue
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Ashwani Singh 
Chief Executive Officer

Message from CEO

FY 2024–25 has been a pivotal year in the 
journey of Fabtech Technologies Ltd. It was 
not only a year of strong numbers, but also 
one of deeper purpose, strategic milestones 
and global momentum.

We ended the year with a standalone revenue 
of ₹236 Cr and consolidated revenue of ₹325 
Cr, reflecting strong execution, operational 
resilience, and the enduring trust of our global 
clientele. Our projects spanned 26 countries, 
with Saudi Arabia and the UAE emerging 
as key growth hubs. During the year, we 
successfully delivered several large-scale, 
regulatory-grade facilities that demonstrated 
our turnkey engineering strength, our ability 
to navigate complex project landscapes, 
and our commitment to quality without 
compromise. These achievements are not just 
milestones—they are a testament to Fabtech’s 
role in shaping future-ready healthcare and 
pharmaceutical infrastructure worldwide. 

One of our most defining achievements was 
the filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus 
(DRHP) in September 2024, a significant step 
towards becoming a publicly listed company. 
This milestone involved rigorous diligence, 
inter-departmental alignment, and renewed
commitment to governance, laying the

foundation for a more transparent, scalable, 
and future-ready organisation.

During the year, we strengthened our 
corporate governance frameworks to 
align with the highest regulatory standards. 
More than compliance, these reforms are 
foundational to the trust we build with 
stakeholders, as we continue to prepare 
ourselves for the next phase of growth. 

In parallel, we expanded our global footprint 
with two new subsidiaries in Dubai and 
acquired a strategic stake in a business 
focused on Effervescent tablets and OSD 
processing technologies. Our recognition as 
a 2-Star Export House by DGFT, alongside 
maintaining our CRISIL BBB+ (Stable) credit 
rating, reinforced our operational credibility 
and leadership in international markets. 

FY25 marked the first time in our history that 
we declared a Bonus Issue and Special 
Dividend, reaffirming our commitment to 
delivering value to our shareholders. 
As we move forward, our goals are clear:
•	 To grow our presence in biopharma, high-

tech, and semiconductor infrastructure
•	 To drive innovation through R&D, 

automation, and digital integration
•	 To continue setting benchmarks in turnkey 

engineering solutions that empower 
healthcare and life sciences globally

We would like to thank our customers, 
employees, partners, and shareholders 
for your belief, partnership, and continued 
support. Together, we are not just building 
infrastructure; but we are engineering access, 
resilience, and the future of global health.

Warm regards,

Ashwani Singh
Chief Executive Officer
Fabtech Technologies Ltd
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Naushad Panjwani 
Non-Executive Chairman

Message from Chairman

FY 2024–25 marked a defining phase in 
Fabtech’s journey — not just in financial 
performance, but in the maturing of our 
institutional character, strategic clarity, and 
global outlook.

While the operational and strategic 
milestones have been aptly captured in 
the CEO’s message, I wish to spotlight the 
foundational shifts quietly shaping Fabtech 
into a future-ready enterprise.

This was a year of powerful dualities:
•	 We strengthened governance and 

compliance, yet retained the nimbleness 
that defines a high-growth organisation.

•	 We deepened our presence in core 
markets, while breaking new ground in 
emerging geographies.

•	 We faced global uncertainty, yet 
continued to grow, lead and deliver — with 
confidence and conviction.

Our commitment to innovation, engineering 
precision, and customer excellence continues 
to set us apart. As we widen our canvas 
beyond pharmaceuticals into biopharma, 
semiconductors, and data centres, we are 
not merely diversifying — we are redefining 
the possibilities of turnkey infrastructure.

The future, while uncertain, is also full of 
opportunity. At Fabtech, we are already 
working on:

•	 Leveraging AI to enable smarter, more 
predictive project management

•	 Deepening our commitment to green 
engineering and sustainable practices

•	 Adopting global best-in-class project 
management principles — going beyond 
the traditional metrics of time, cost, and 
quality to deliver true value and trusted 
partnerships to our clients

The concept of Life Engineering — which sits 
at the heart of Fabtech — continues to find 
its highest expression in our people. Our Life 
Engineers are not just professionals delivering 
projects; they are creators of resilient, 
compliant, and future-ready environments 
that protect and elevate human lives across 
the globe.

A special note of appreciation is due to our 
Business Development, Sales & Marketing 
teams, whose efforts have ensured a healthy 
and diversified order book despite intensifying 
competition from low-cost players including 
China, and our bold entry into newer, highly 
competitive markets. Their resilience and 
strategic agility have helped fortify Fabtech’s 
market position and laid a strong foundation 
for the next phase of growth.

As we look ahead, we are committed to 
sharpening our focus on addressing the 
challenges of execution and operational 
excellence, especially in light of our 
burgeoning order book and the growing 
complexity of delivering across an expanding 
global footprint. 

I also wish to acknowledge — with sincere 
gratitude — the clients who entrust us, the 
banks who back us, the associates and 
vendors who believe in our mission, ..
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Message from Chairman
the auditors and consultants who keep 
us sharp, and our shareholders for their 
continuing trust.

An enterprise of this nature demands bold 
vision, patient capital, and unwavering 
support. I take this opportunity to also thank 
our promoters, whose entrepreneurial drive, 
foresight, and trust continue to shape the 
long arc of Fabtech’s growth story.

We are at an inflection point — institutionally 
strong, strategically ambitious, and culturally 
aligned for the future. For those associated 
with Fabtech — as partners, employees, clients, 
or investors — the road ahead promises to be 
nothing short of exciting and enriching.

On behalf of the Board, I extend my warm 
appreciation to each of you. Thank you for 
being part of this journey.

Warm regards,

Naushad Panjwani
Non-Executive Chairman and 
Independent Director 
Fabtech Technologies Ltd.
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Company has achieved the Turnover 
of 100 Cr in the second year of the 
incorporation i.e., FY 2019-20

Company has represented and 
successfully executed the orders in 
underdeveloped countries like Angola, 
Ethiopia, Bangladesh etc. where there 
is no other company performed.

Achieved 250 crore turnover in the 
year 2021-22.

Awarded ISO 9001:2015, 14001:2015, & 
45001:2018 for excellence in quality, 
environmental management, and 
occupational health & safety in turnkey 
solutions for the pharmaceutical, 
biotech, and healthcare industries.

Company has represented in 42 
countries over the globe and deal 
with about 175 customers over the 
globe from the inception till date.  

Company has successfully executed 
the turnkey project with three foreign 

Government Organized entity in the 
foreign Country i.e., 

1. Egypt 2. Bangladesh 3. Ethiopia  

Acquired one company to expand in 
the govervnment sector, one LLP to 
boost pharmaceutical engineering 

and OSD process solutions, and two 
LLCs in the UAE to strengthen our 

presence in the Gulf market.

Milestones
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Finance and Secretarial Achievements 
of FY 2024-25

We are one-step closer towards getting the Company listed on the Stock Exchanges 
having filed the Draft Red-Herring Prospectus (DRHP) in September 2024. This involved 
a lot of work towards due diligence, coordination with external agencies, certifications 
etc. which was completed by the team and support received from other Departments.

Addition of a new banker, viz. IndusInd Bank, to enhance our working capital limits.

The Company obtained a “2 Star” Export House Certification from DGFT.

The Company maintained its CRISIL long term rating of BBB+ (Stable) and short term 
rating of A2.

Established two new subsidiaries in Dubai

Filed DRHP in September 2024

Improved processes to ensure compliance with respect to Corporate Governance 
and Statutory Regulations.

FY 2025 was the first year that the Company declared Bonus issue and also Special 
Dividend to its Shareholders. 

This was also the year that the Company got converted to a Public Limited Company. 
This also required dematerialization of the equity shares of the Company. 

The Company added two new Subsidiaries in Dubai and acquired stake in an entity 
providing equipment, solutions and services for Effervescent Tablet Processing & 
Packaging and OSD.
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Awards & Accolades

GIAD Industrial Group - 
Sudan

Saudi International 
Development Fund

NVI - Ethiopia

IDMA Corporate Citizen 
Award 2018

Shivprabha Jeevan 
Gaurav Award

The CEO Magazine - 
2017

Milk Vita - Bangladesh

The CEO Magazine - 
2017

Tech Leadership 
Awards 2021
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Certificate of Compliance
 
 
 
 

 
 

This certificate is issued for the following: 
 

Proverz 
 

 
Prepared for: 

  
Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms Private Limited 

 Plot No 190/191, GIDC  
 Umbergaon-396171 

 Gujarat, India 
 

FM Approvals Class:  4880, 4882 
 

Approval Identification:  PR453975       Approval Granted:  9/13/2022 
 

            To verify the availability of the Approved product, please refer to www.approvalguide.com 
       

 
Said Approval is subject to satisfactory field performance, continuing Surveillance Audits, and strict conformity to the 

constructions as shown in the Approval Guide, an online resource  of FM Approvals. 
 
 
 

   
Phillip J. Smith 
VP - Manager of Materials   
FM Approvals 
1151 Boston-Providence Turnpike 
Norwood, MA 02062 
 

  

 
 
 
 

           
 

Certificates

Certificate  
FM Approvals

ISO 9001:2015

Tabuk, Algeria - 
Appreciation Letter

CSR Activity 
Akshaya Patra

ISO 45001:2018

Geo Pharm, Algeria - 
Appreciation Letter

Certificate of  
E-Waste Recycling

ISO 14001:2015

Biorem, Algeria - 
Appreciation Letter
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CSR Activities

This year, our CSR efforts focused on water conservation, 
healthcare, and child nutrition. From supporting the 
“Water for All” initiative in Pune to aiding cancer care 
and awareness through Saidham Hospital and national 
conferences, and providing mid-day meals to children 
in Surat — each initiative reflects our commitment to 
meaningful, long-term impact in the communities we 
serve.
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Sr. 
No.

Name of CSR 
Programmes / Project

Details of CSR Programmes 
/ Project

Allocated 
Amount
(Rs.)

Activity under
Schedule VII of 
Companies Act, 2013

Manner of
Execution
(Direct/ 
Through
Implementing
Agency)

1. Water Harvesting 
Structure – Desilting 
& Development of 
Percolation Tank

“Water for All” initiative in 
the Pune district area for 
the purpose of storing the 
surface runoff, generated 
from the catchment area 
to meet farm needs, viz. 
supply of water for irrigation, 
cattle feed and the local 
community.

30,00,000 ensuring environmental 
sustainability, ecological 
balance, protection of 
flora and fauna, animal 
welfare, agroforestry, 
conservation of 
natural resources and 
maintaining quality of soil, 
air and water (activity 
(iv) of Schedule VII of 
Companies Act, 2013)

Implementing
Agency –
NAAM 
Foundation

2. Implementing
Agency –
NAAM Foundation

Sponsorship for 2nd Edition 
of 4-day Workshop and 
National Conference on 
Integrative Cancer Care 
bringing together 300+ 
cancer patients from across 
the nation.

5,00,000 promoting health care 
including preventive 
health care (activity 
(i) of Schedule VII of 
Companies Act, 2013)

Implementing
Agency –
Sanjeevani - 
Life Beyond 
Cancer

3. Saidham Cancer 
Hospital

Providing Modern cancer 
care with highly trained 
workforce, sophisticated 
equipment and facilities, 
expensive drugs and 
creating public awareness.

15,00,000 promoting health care 
including preventive 
health care (activity 
(i) of Schedule VII of 
Companies Act, 2013)

Implementing
Agency –
Dr. Mane 
Medical 
Foundation 
& Research 
Center

4. Mid-Day Meal for 
children in Surat, 
Gujarat

Providing nutritious, hygienic 
meals to children in need 
and ensuring they stay 
in school, receive proper 
education, and build a 
brighter future.

10,00,000 Eradicating hunger, 
poverty and malnutrition 
(activity (i) of Schedule VII 
of Companies Act, 2013)

Implementing
Agency –
The Akshaya 
Patra 
Foundation

Total 60,00,000

DETAILS OF CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
FABTECH TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

CSR Projects
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Activities & Programs

This year, we proudly hosted a series of successful employee 
engagement activities and events, such as Yoga & 
Meditation Sessions, Cricket Tournament (FPL), Christmas, 
Diwali & Iftar Party, POSH Training sessions, Womens Day, 
International Tea Day and Emoji Day celebrations. These 
initiatives have strengthened our sense of community, 
enhanced collaboration, and reinforced our collective 
commitment to shared goals.
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Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated

Total Income 24,665.08 33,594.21 22,954.77 23,060.44

Total Expenditure 21,649.27 29,367.93 19,473.80 19,621.56

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 5,213.61 6,043.36 3,480.97 3,577.01

Current Tax 1,358.00 1,463.15  896.00  896.00 

(Excess) / Short provision for tax relating 

to prior year
(1.21) (1.15)  -    -   

Deferred Tax (19.25)  (63.93)  (37.18)  (40.72) 

Share in profit of associate - 32.22 - 138.14

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 3,837.57 4,645.29 2,622.15 2,721.74

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 3,824.15 4,632.70 2,621.57 2,722.47

Earning per Equity Share (Face Value: Rs. 

10/-)

            Basic (INR) 11.85 14.34 8.13  8.43 

            Diluted (INR) 11.85 14.34 8.13  8.43 

Director’s Report
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) are pleased to present the 07th (Seventh) Annual Report 
on the business and operations of the Fabtech Technologies Limited (“the Company” or 
“Fabtech”) along with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (“FY 2024-25”). 

The Company’s financial performance for the FY 2024-25 are summarized below: -

The standalone, as well as the consolidated financial statements, have been prepared in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”).
The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts are rounded to the 
nearest Lakhs, except as stated otherwise.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Standalone and Consolidated):
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a) Standalone basis:
The revenue from operations on standalone basis for FY 2024-25 stood at ₹23,642.35 Lakhs as 
against ₹22,502.59 Lakhs for FY 2023-24, registering a growth of 5.06%. Whereas the profits for 
FY 2024-25 stood at ₹3,837.57 Lakhs as against ₹2,622.15 Lakhs for FY 2023-24 marking a rise by 
46.35%.

b) Consolidated basis:
The revenue from operations on consolidated basis for FY 2024-25 stood at ₹32,666.85 Lakhs as 
against ₹22,613.63 Lakhs for FY 2023-24, registering a growth of 44.46%. Whereas the profits for 
FY 2024-25 stood at ₹4,645.29 Lakhs as against ₹2,721.74 Lakhs for FY 2023-24 marking a rise by 
70.67%.

There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review. 

The Company is engaged in the business of providing turnkey project solutions to pharmaceuticals 
and allied industries by way of supplying pharmaceutical machineries/ equipment, in house 
designing and engineering and to undertake other activities required in various pharmaceutical 
turnkey projects.

During the year under review, there are no changes in the nature of business of the Company.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors do not recommend any Final Dividend on the 
Equity Shares of the Company in view of conservation of profits.

However, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 4th June, 2024, declared a Special 
Dividend of Rs.1.50/- per equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each for the 
Financial Year 2024-25, which was subsequently paid to the Shareholders. 

Further, the Company has formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy in accordance with Regulation 
43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The same is 
available on the website of the Company at www.fabtechnologies.com 

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW:

REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

REVIEW OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY:

DIVIDEND:
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During the year under review, there were no unpaid or unclaimed dividends liable to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) pursuant to the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended (“Rules”). Accordingly, no shares were required to 
be transferred to the IEPF. 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
(IEPF):

No part of the profit for the year was transferred to General Reserves during the year under review.

	► Conversion from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company 
The Company has converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company and 
consequently upon conversion, the name of the Company has been changed from “Fabtech 
Technologies Private Limited” to “Fabtech Technologies Limited” and the fresh certificate of 
incorporation dated 24th July, 2024 was issued by the Registrar of Companies. 

	► Alteration of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. 
As part of the Company’s preparation for its proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO), the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association were amended via Special Resolution passed 
by the members of the Company in Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held 
on 26th June, 2024. The amendments were carried out to align the Company’s charter 
documents with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 
and to incorporate provisions necessary for a public listed company, including changes 
related to share capital structure, governance norms, and shareholder rights. 

	► Acquisition of Land  
During the year under review, the Company acquired a parcel of land located at Khalapur, 
Raigad, from its Group Company, Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited 
(formerly known as Fabtech Technologies International Limited). The said acquisition was 
approved by the shareholders through a special resolution passed at the Extra-Ordinary 
General Meeting held on 2nd August, 2024. This acquisition is aligned with the Company’s 
long-term strategic growth plans.

	► Filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus  
During the year under review, the Company filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on 14th September, 2024, in connection 
with its proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO). The IPO is intended to raise funds to support the 
Company’s growth plans. 
The filing of the DRHP marks an important step in the Company’s journey towards becoming 
a listed entity and is expected to have a meaningful impact on its capital structure, 
compliance framework, and overall market presence.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY THAT OCCURRED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:
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Sr. No Name of Directors DIN Designation

1. Mr. Naushad A Panjwani 06640459
Chairman and Non-Executive 

Independent Director

2. Mr. Hemant Mohan Anavkar 00150776 Executive Director

3. Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani 02718019 Non-Executive Director

4. Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi 08532321 Non-Executive Director

5. Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante 06918122 Non – Executive Independent Director

6. Ms. Aparna Sharma 07132341 Non – Executive Independent Director

	► Bonus Issue of Shares
During the period under review, the Company issued and allotted 2,94,47,490 (Two Crore Ninety-
Four Lakhs Forty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees 
Ten Only) each to the holders of existing equity shares of the Company in the proportion of 10 
(Ten) equity shares for every 1 (one) existing equity share held by the Members, approved by 
Shareholders in meeting dated 15th March, 2024, were allotted pursuant to resolution passed by 
the Board of Directors dated 3rd April, 2024. 

	► Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Capital
The Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 is Rs.32,39,22,390/- 
(Rupees Thirty-Two Crores Thirty-Nine Lakhs Twenty-Two Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety 
only) divided into 3,23,92,239 (Three Crores Twenty-Three Lakhs Ninety-Two Thousand Two 
Hundred and Thirty-Nine) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits as on 31st March, 2025 within the meaning of Section 
73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

As on the date of this Report, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 6 (six) Board 
Members out of which 1 (one) is an Executive Director, 2 (two) are Non-Executive Directors and 3 
(three) are Non-Executive Independent Directors. 
The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on the date of this Report is as 
follows:

SHARE CAPITAL:

DEPOSITS:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
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Sr. 

No.
Name of the Directors Designation

Appointment/

Cessation
Date

1. Mr. Guman Mal Jain Chief Financial Officer Resignation 17/10/2024

2.
Mr. Kalpesh Chimanlal 

Chauhan
Chief Financial Officer Appointment 18/11/2024

Sr. 

No.
Name of the Directors Designation Reasons Date of Cessation

1. Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante
Non-Executive, Additional Independent 

Director

Resignation

29/05/2024

2. Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi Nominee Director 30/05/2024

3. Mr. Hemant Mohan Anavkar Executive Director 31/05/2024

4. Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani Executive Director 09/07/2024

Sr. 

No.
Name of the Directors Designation

Appointment/Re-

appointment
Date

1. Ms. Aparna Sharma Non – Executive,  Independent Director

Appointment

03/04/2024

2. Mr. Hemant Mohan Anavkar Executive Director 06/06/2024

3. Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi Non-Executive Director 06/06/2024

4. Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante Non – Executive,  Independent Director 26/06/2024

5. Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani Non-Executive Director 13/07/2024

6. Mr. Naushad A Panjwani Non – Executive,  Independent Director 30/07/2024

b) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
The following changes took place among the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company 
during the year under review and as on the date of this Report:

All Directors have confirmed that they are not disqualified under the provisions of Section 164(2) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 17th February, 2025, approved appointment 
of Mr. Naushad Alimohmed Panjwani, Non- Executive Independent Director as Chairman of the 
Board of Directors.
 
ii. Cessation of Directors:

a) Appointments/Resignations/Changes in the Board of Directors: 
The following changes took place among the Board of Directors of the Company during the 
Financial Year and as on the date of this Report:
i. Appointment of Directors:

Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
during the Financial Year 2024-25 and up to the date of this report:
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BOARD EVALUATION:

The appointment of the Independent Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company is subject 
to the provisions of Section 149 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company has obtained declarations from the Independent Directors of the Company to the 
effect that they are meeting the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 including the compliance of relevant provisions of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company 
possess requisite qualifications, skills, experience and expertise and they hold highest standards 
of integrity (including the proficiency) and fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and are 
independent of the management.

Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi, Non-Executive Director of the Company will retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. Mr. Chirag 
Himatlal Doshi has also confirmed his eligibility to be re-appointed as Non-Executive Director of 
the Company at the Annual General Meeting.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

RETIRE BY ROTATION:

The Board has adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as that 
of its committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise 
was carried out annually through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects 
of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board and Committees, experience and 
competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations, contribution at the meetings and 
otherwise, independent judgment, governance issues etc.

The Board carried out a comprehensive evaluation of its own performance as a whole, as well 
as that of its committees and individual directors, and concluded that it was satisfied with the 
performance of all directors.
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No. of Board Meeting Date of the Board Meeting No. of Directors Present

1 3rd April, 2024 4

2 4th June, 2024 2

3 30th July, 2024 5

4 14th August, 2024 6

5 6th September, 2024 5

6 13th September, 2024 4

7 18th November, 2024 4

8 5th December, 2024 6

9 6th December, 2024 6

10 17th February, 2025 5

Sr. 
No. Name of the Directors Designation

Board Meetings held during the Financial Year

Held Entitled to 
Attend Attended % of 

attendance

1 Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani Non-Executive Director 10 10 9 90.00

2 Mr. Hemant Mohan Anavkar Executive Director 10 9 7 77.78

3 Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi Non-Executive Director 10 9 7 77.78

5 Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 10 9 8 88.89

6 Ms. Aparna Sharma Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 10 9 9 100

7 Mr. Naushad Alimohmed 
Panjwani

Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 10 7 7 100

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Total numbers of Members as on 
the date of Meeting

Attendance

Number of 
Members attended % of attendance

1 18.11.2024 4 4 100

2 05.12.2024 4 4 100

3 17.02.2024 4 4 100

The Board of Directors met 10 (Ten) times during the Financial Year 2024-25 and the details of the 
same are mentioned below:

A. Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Number of Meetings Held: 3

The gap intervening between any two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and 
twenty days.
Attendance of the Directors for the Board Meetings held in the Financial Year 2024-25:

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

COMMITTEE MEETINGS:
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The Company has a robust vigil mechanism through its Whistle Blower Policy approved and 
adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 
(10) of the Act.
The Policy also provides protection to the directors, employees and business associates who 
report unethical practices and irregularities. Any incidents that are reported are investigated and 
suitable action is taken in line with the Whistle Blower Policy.

The loans given, investments made and guarantee given and securities provided under Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms a part of the Note No. 7, 8, 12, 16 and 41 of the Standalone 
Financial Statements for the FY 2024-25, which forms part of the Annual Report.

All the transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of the business and on 
arm’s length basis and are reported in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The Company has 
formulated a policy on Related Party Transactions and the same is available on the website of the 
Company at www.fabtechnologies.com

The disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 188 (2) and 134(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is annexed as “Annexure - A”.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Total numbers of Members as on 
the date of Meeting

Attendance

Number of 
Members attended % of attendance

1. 06.09.2024 4 3 75

2. 18.11.2024 4 4 100

3. 05.12.2024 4 4 100

4. 17.02.2024 4 4 100

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Total numbers of Members as on 
the date of Meeting

Attendance

Number of 
Members attended % of attendance

1. 17.02.2024 4 3 75

B. Audit Committee
Number of Meetings Held: 4

C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Number of Meetings Held: 1
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(a) Statutory Auditors:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there 
under, M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera (FRN: 018796C), Chartered Accountants were appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held for the Financial Year 
2019-20 for a period of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of that Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2024-25.
On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board at its Meeting held on 2nd August, 
2025 have proposed the appointment of M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera (FRN: 018796C), Chartered 
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of 5 years, i.e., from the 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2024-25 until the conclusion of the 
Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2029-30. 
The Company has also received a confirmation from M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera (FRN: 018796C), 
Chartered Accountants, to the effect that they are eligible and not disqualified under section 141 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, for being appointed as Auditors of 
the Company. The requirement for the annual ratification of auditors’ appointment at the AGM 
has been omitted pursuant to companies (amendment) Act, 2017.

(b) Secretarial Auditors:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Board had appointed 
M/s. KJB & CO LLP (AAM-3002), Practicing Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company for Financial Year 2024-25. They have undertaken Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for Financial Year 2024-25. The report given by the Secretarial Auditor has been annexed as 
“Annexure – C” and form integral part of this Report. 

AUDITORS:

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

As on 31st March 2025, the Company has two wholly owned Subsidiary Companies and one Step-
down Subsidiary, one Associate Company and no Joint venture.
The Company transferred 51% of 33.33% equity shareholding in TSA Process Equipments Private 
Limited to Thermax Limited, resulting in its cessation as an Associate Company with effect from 
6th February, 2024.
Further, as on 31st March 2025, the Company also holds 100% investment in FABL International 
Technologies LLP.
The details in Form AOC-1 is annexed as “Annexure – B” to this Report.

During the year under review: 
	► The Company acquired 33.33% stake in Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited as approved 

in the Board Meeting held on 05th December 2024, thereby designating it as an Associate 
Company in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
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On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board at its Meeting held on 2nd August, 
2025, have proposed the appointment of M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, 
having Firm Peer review No. 1977/2022) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for first term of 5 
years, i.e., from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2024-25 until the 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2029-30.

(c) Internal Auditors:
During the year under review, pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed M/s. Bathiya 
& Associates LLP as the Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25.
Subsequently, the firm underwent a name change to M/s. S H B A & Co LLP, which was duly noted 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.
During the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported any instances of fraud 
committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to 
be mentioned in this Board’s report.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE 
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Annual Return has been placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
https://fabtechnologies.com/annual-returns/. In terms of Rules 11 and 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return shall be filed with the Registrar 
of Companies within the prescribed timelines. 

Subsequent to the end of the financial year and up to the date of this Report, the Company 
entered into a transaction for the sale of 51% of its equity stake in FABL International Technologies 
LLP to Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited, thereby resulting in the cessation of its 
status as a subsidiary of the Company with effect from 1st April, 2025.
Apart from the above, there have been no other material changes and commitments affecting 
the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this 
Report. 

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by any 
Regulators, Courts, or Tribunals against the Company that have an impact on the going concern 
status of the Company and its operations.

ANNUAL RETURN:

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY THAT OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH 
THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND FOUNDATION’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:
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1. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Pursuant to Section 177 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, the Company constituted an Audit Committee.
As on 31st March, 2025, the composition of Audit Committee is as under:

a.	 Mr. Naushad Alimohmed Panjwani – Chairperson (Non-Executive and Independent 
Director)

b.	 Ms. Aparna Sharma – Member (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
c.	 Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi – Member (Non-Executive Director)
d.	 Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante – Member (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

During the year, 4 (four) Audit Committee meetings were held. The Board has accepted all the 
recommendations of Audit Committee.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted as per Section 178 and other 
applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
As on 31st March, 2025, the composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under:

a.	 Ms. Aparna Sharma – Chairperson (Non-Executive and Independent Director) 
b.	 Mr. Naushad Alimohmed Panjwani – Member (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
c.	 Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi – Member (Non-Executive Director)
d.	 Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante – Member (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

The Company has framed a Policy for formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director alongwith Policy relating to the remuneration 
for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The same is available on 
website of the Company at https://fabtechnologies.com/policies/ 

3. STAKEHOLDERS REALTIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
The Company has voluntarily constituted as per Section 178 and other applicable provision of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to 
oversee the redressal of investor grievances and related matters.
As on 31st March, 2025, the composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as under:

a.	 Ms. Aparna Sharma – Chairperson (Non-Executive and Independent Director)  
b.	 Mr. Naushad Alimohmed Panjwani – Member (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
c.	 Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi – Member (Non-Executive Director)
d.	 Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani – Member (Non-Executive Director)

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
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4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
Pursuant to Section 135 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, the Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.
As on 31st March, 2025, the composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under:

a.	 Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante – Chairperson (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
b.	 Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani – Member (Non-Executive Director) 
c.	 Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi – Member (Non-Executive Director)
d.	 Mr. Hemant Mohan Anavkar – Member (Executive Director)

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 
has formulated and approved a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the 
activities to be undertaken by the Company. The CSR Committee and Board functions according 
to the CSR Policy. The policy is available on the Company’s website at https://fabtechnologies.
com/policies/
The Annual Report on CSR Activities is enclosed as per prescribed format as ‘Annexure – D’ and 
forms a integral part of this report. 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:
The Company has voluntarily constituted a Risk Management Committee to identify, monitor, and 
mitigate business and operational risks.
As on 31st March, 2025, the composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under:

a.	 Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi – Chairperson (Non-Executive Director)
b.	 Mr. Naushad Alimohmed Panjwani – Member (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
c.	 Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani – Member (Non-Executive Director) 
d.	 Mr. Hemant Mohan Anavkar – Member (Executive Director)

In terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has developed and 
implemented the Risk Management Policy and the same is reviewed periodically by the Board of 
Directors. Salient features of the policy are as under:
1.	 To institute a risk intelligence charter for the organization;
2.	 To safeguard that all the current and expected risk exposures of the organization are identified, 

qualitatively and quantitatively assessed, analysed and appropriately managed.
3.	 To enable passivity with the relevant legal and regulatory necessities and international norms.
4.	 To assure noticeable achievement of objectives and enhancement of financial solidity of the 

organization.
The Risk Management Policy of the Company is uploaded on the Company’s website at the 
following web link: https://fabtechnologies.com/policies/

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

As per the Cost Audit Rules, cost audit or maintenance of cost records is not applicable to any of 
the Company’s products/ business of the Company for F.Y. 2024-25.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SECTION 148 (1) OF COMPANIES ACT 2013:
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Sr.No. Name Designation

1 Alka Solanki Presiding Officer

2 Archana Suryawanshi Member

3 Mithilesh Yadav Member

4 Archana Bhatte Member

5 Manashvi Parikh External Member

Sr.No. Name Designation

1 Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints received Nil 

2 Number of Complaints disposed off Not Applicable

3 Number of Cases pending for more than 90 days Not Applicable

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported to the Audit Committee 
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the 
Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in this 
Board’s report.

The Company has laid down adequate internal financial controls corresponding with the scale, 
size and nature of the business of the Company. The Company has in place passable policies and 
procedures for ensuring the orderly and effective control of its business, including obedience to 
the Company’s policies, safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial disclosures.

The Company has not received any complaints during the Financial Year 2024-25.
Further, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has introduced an amendment requiring disclosure of 
POSH compliance in the Board’s Report for reports approved in the Board Meeting held on or after 
14th July 2025. Accordingly, the following disclosure is being made in compliance with the said 
requirement:

The Company is committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment to all its 
employees and associates. The Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace in place, which is available on the Company website at www.fabtechnologies.com 

The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee as per the sexual Harassment of 
Women & workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year under review, 
no complaint was received under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The composition of Internal Complaints Committee is as 
under:

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS:

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:
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Sr. No.   Particulars Response

1 Maternity Leave provisions As per Maternity Benefit Act 1961

2 Salary and Benefits Full Salary

3 Related Employee Entitlements

Not Applicable, only Employee 

is eligible for Full Salary with 

entitlements if any.

Female 30

Male 157

Transgender 0

Total 187

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has introduced an amendment requiring disclosure of POSH 
compliance in the Board’s Report for reports approved in the Board Meeting held on or after 
14th July 2025. Accordingly, the following disclosure is being made in compliance with the said 
requirement under Maternity Benefit Act, 1961:

MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE:

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AS ON THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 
(i)	 Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – The Operations of the Company are not 

energy intensive. However, Company continues to implement prudent practices for saving 
electricity and other energy resources in day-to-day activities.

(ii)	Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Though the activities 
undertaken by the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall explore alternative 
sources of energy, as and when the necessity arises.

(iii)	The capital investment on energy conservation equipment – Nil

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
(i)	 the efforts made towards technology absorption: There is no technology absorption by the 

Company. However, the Company constantly strives for maintenance and improvement in 
quality of its products and entire Research & Development activities are directed to achieve 
the aforesaid goal.

(ii)	 the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: Not Applicable

(iii)	in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year): Not Applicable

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO:
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Particulars Amount (INR Lakhs)

Foreign Exchange earnings: FOB Value of Export Sales 19,896.93 

Foreign Exchange Outgo:

    1. Value of Imports on C.I.F Basis 1,069.06

    2. Expenditure in Foreign Currency 2,280.08 

(a) the details of technology imported: 
(b) the year of import: 
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: 
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: 
(e) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT-GO:
During the year, following were the Foreign exchange earnings and Out-go:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, based on the 
representations received from the Management, would like to state that:

i.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there has been no material  departure;

ii.	 The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit of the Company for the year under review;

iii.	 The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

iv.	 The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
v.	 The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Company is in regular compliance of the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA 
(ICSI):

Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 is not applicable to the Company.

EMPLOYEES:
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The Board of Directors express their gratitude for the valuable support and co-operation extended 
by various Government authorities and stakeholders including shareholders, banks, financial 
Institutions, viewers, vendors and service providers.
The Board also place on record their deep appreciation towards the dedication and commitment 
of your Company’s employees at all levels and look forward to their continued support in the 
future as well.

For FABTECH TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

Sd/-
AMJAD ADAM ARBANI

DIRECTOR
DIN: 02718019

Sd/-
HEMANT MOHAN ANAVKAR

DIRECTOR
DIN: 00150776

Date : August 02, 2025
Place: Mumbai

During the financial year under review:-

a.	 There was no issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
b.	 There was no issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company 

under any scheme.
c.	 The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own 

shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.
d.	 Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any 

remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries.
e.	 There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
f.	 There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.
g.	 The Company does not have any shares in unclaimed suspense demat account.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

OTHER GENERAL DISCLOSURES:
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Sr. 
No. Related Parties Nature of 

Relationship

Nature of 
contracts/

arrangements/
transaction

Duration of 
the contracts/

arrangements/
transaction

Salient 
terms of the 
contracts or 

arrangements 
or transaction 
including the 
value, if any

Date of 
approval by 

the Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, if 
any

1. Altair Partition 
Systems LLP

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence
Purchase

As agreed 
between the 

parties
137.80 03.04.2024 -

2.
Advantek Air 
Systems Pvt. 

Ltd.

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence
Purchase

As agreed 
between the 

parties
130.16 03.04.2024 33.67

3.
TSA Process 

Equipments Pvt. 
Ltd.

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Purchase
Sales

As agreed 
between the 

parties
1,148.76 03.04.2024 -

4.
Pacifab 

Technologies 
LLP

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence
Purchase

As agreed 
between the 

parties
99.94
9.10 03.04.2024

5.

FABL 
International 
Technologies 

LLP

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Purchase

As agreed 
between the 

parties

0.39

03.04.2024

-

6.
Reimbursement 

of expenses 
(net)

0.69 -

7. Interest Income 38.79 -

FORM NO. AOC -2

Annexure - “A”

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.
1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis- Not applicable

a.	 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
b.	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
c.	 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction
d.	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any
e.	 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’
f.	 Date of approval by the Board
g.	 Amount paid as advances, if any
h.	 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188
2.	 **Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
(INR Lakhs)
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8. Fabtech 
Technologies 

Cleanrooms Ltd

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Purchase As agreed 
between the 

parties

1,522.85
03.04.2024

-

9. Reimbursement 
of Expenses 1.22 -

10. Fabsafe 
Technologies 

Pvt Ltd

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Purchase As agreed 
between the 

parties

260.12
03.04.2024

-

11. Reimbursement 
of Expenses 18.45 -

12. G7 Universal 
LLC

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Sales 
Commission

As agreed 
between the 

parties
144.54 03.04.2024 -

13.
Fabtech 
Turnkey 

Projects LLP

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence
Rent Paid

As agreed 
between the 

parties
96.00 03.04.2024 -

14. FTS 
Cleanrooms 
Systems LLC

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Sales As agreed 
between the 

parties

6,373.20 
05.12.2024

-

15. Reimbursement 
of Expenses 126.90 -

16. Fabtech 
Technologies 
International 

Pvt Ltd

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Interest Income As agreed 
between the 

parties

4.74
03.04.2024

-

17. Trademark 
Charges 23.22 -

18. FT Institutions 
Private Limited

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence
Interest Income

As agreed 
between the 

parties
3.52 23.11.2024

19.
Fabtech 

Technologies 
LLC

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Interest Income
As agreed 

between the 
parties

125.40 03.04.2024 -

20.
Mark Maker 

Engineering Pvt 
Ltd

Companies/Firms 
in which Directors 
have Significant 

Influence

Interest Income
As agreed 

between the 
parties

2.25 03.04.2024 -

21. Mr. Hemant 
Anavkar Director Remuneration Annual 55.50 03.04.2024 -

22. Mrs. Manisha H 
Anavkar

Relatives of Key 
Management Remuneration Annual 53.88 03.04.2024 -

23. Mr. Aamer Asif 
Khan

Relatives of Key 
Management

Professional 
Fees Annual 4.50 03.04.2024 -

24. Mrs. Naseem 
Khan

Relatives of Key 
Management Rent Paid As per 

agreement 2.40 03.04.2024 -

25. Mr. Ashwani 
Singh

Chief Executive 
Officer Salary

As per letter 
issued by the 

Company
129.13 14.03.2024 -

26. Mr. Guman Mal 
Jain

Chief Financial 
Officer (From 

22-01-2024 upto 
17.10.2024)

Salary
As per letter 

issued by the 
Company

45.75 22.01.2024 -

27. Ms. Neetu 
Buchasia

Company 
Secretary & 

Compliance Officer
Salary

As per letter 
issued by the 

Company
7.41 22.01.2024 -

28.
Mr. Kalpesh 
Chimanlal 
Chauhan

Chief Financial 
Officer (From 

18.11.2024)
Salary

As per letter 
issued by the 

Company
11.17 18.11.2024 -
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29. Mr. Amjad 
Arbani Director Board Sitting 

Fees

As decided by 
the Board of 

Directors
0.70 03.04.2024 -

30. Mr. Chirag 
Doshi Director Board Sitting 

Fees

As decided by 
the Board of 

Directors
0.75 03.04.2024 -

31.
Ms. Aparna 

Sharma Director

Board Sitting 
Fees As decided by 

the Board of 
Directors

3.70

03.04.2024

-

32.
Reimbursement 

of expenses 
(net)

0.07 -

33. Mr. Naushad 
Panjwani Director Board Sitting 

Fees

As decided by 
the Board of 

Directors
3.20 03.04.2024 -

34.
Mr. Shyam 

Khante Director

Board Sitting 
Fees As decided by 

the Board of 
Directors

3.70

03.04.2024

-

35.
Reimbursement 

of expenses 
(net)

0.22 -

Also refer Related Party transactions under AS 18 have been stated under Note No. 47 of the 
Financial Statements for the FY 2024-25.

For FABTECH TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

Sd/-
AMJAD ADAM ARBANI

DIRECTOR
DIN: 02718019

Sd/-
HEMANT MOHAN ANAVKAR

DIRECTOR
DIN: 00150776

Date: August 02, 2025 
Place: Mumbai
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Sl. No. 1. 2.

Name of the subsidiary FT Institutions Private Limited Fabtech Technologies LLC

Date since when subsidiary was acquired November 28, 2023 December 26, 2023

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, 
if different from the holding company's 
reporting period

March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2025

Reporting currency INR AED

Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries

N.A. 23.2626

Share capital 1.00 1,00,000

Reserves & surplus (36.71) 50,02,307

Total assets 720.32 4,37,73,435

Total Liabilities 756.03 3,86,71,128

Investments 0.00 0.00

Turnover 697.06 6,04,49,513

Profit before taxation (7.39) 54,59,953

Provision for taxation (9.91) 4,57,646

Profit after taxation 2.52 50,02,307

Proposed Dividend - 0.00

% of shareholding 100% 100%

FORM NO. AOC-1

Annexure - “B”

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate 
companies/joint ventures (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with 
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in INR (in lakhs) / AED  

Note:
1.	 There are no subsidiaries that are yet to commence operation.
2.	 The company sold 51% of its total holding in FABL International Technologies LLP pursuant to amended LLP Agreement 

dated 1st April, 2025.
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Particulars Mark Maker Engineering Private 
Limited

1. Latest audited balance sheet date 31st March, 2025

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired 29th December, 2024

3. Shares of Associate/ Joint ventures held by the company on the year end

Numbers 3,34,950

Amount of investment in associates and joint ventures 799.99

Extend of Holding % 33.33%

4. Description of how there is significant influence Associate

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 866.73

7. Profit / Loss for the year 96.68

i. Considered in Consolidation 32.22

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 64.46

Note:
1.	 There are no associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations
2.	 The Company transferred 51% of its equity shareholding in TSA Process Equipments Private 

Limited to Thermax Limited, resulting in its cessation as an Associate Company with effect 
from 23rd April, 2024

For FABTECH TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

Sd/-
AMJAD ADAM ARBANI

DIRECTOR
DIN: 02718019

Sd/-
HEMANT MOHAN ANAVKAR

DIRECTOR
DIN: 00150776

Date: August 02, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies 
and Joint Ventures
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025. 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

Annexure - “C”

To, 
The Members,
Fabtech Technologies Limited,
(formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)
Mumbai, Maharashtra.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate governance practice by Fabtech Technologies Limited 
(“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to 
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the 
provisions of:
i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”); - Not applicable to the Company for the year 
under review.

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; - Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;
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d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 – 
Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 – Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 – 
Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client – Not 
applicable to the Company for the year under review;

i.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008 - Not applicable to the Company for the year under review.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards 
with respect to meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above to the extent applicable. 
We further report that:
1.	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. 
2.	 Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings and Meetings of Committees except in some cases where the meetings were held on 
shorter notice after complying with the necessary provisions. Agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent in advance in adequate time before the meetings and a system exists for 
Directors for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
3.	 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes.
Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that there are 
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.
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We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on the basis of the 
representations made by the Company, it has identified and complied with the various laws to 
the extent applicable to it inter-alia:
• The Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016
• Central Electricity Authority (Measures relating to Safety and Electric Supply) Regulations, 2010.
• Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme, 2020
• The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
• Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016 

We further report that during the audit period the company has:
• Allotted 2,94,47,490 equity shares as bonus shares in the ratio of 10:1 to its existing equity 
shareholders on April 03,2024
• Filed an application for Compounding Offences with respect to non-compliance under Section 
42, 62 and 102 of Companies Act, 2013 for issuing of equity shares through private placement.
• Filed an application for Adjudication of Offences with respect to non-compliance under Section 
77 and 78 of Companies Act, 2013 for delay in filling of charge.
• Filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus for Initial Public Offer with Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) on September 14, 2024 for an Initial Public Offering. 
• Acquired 33.33% of Equity share capital of Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited.
• Obtained fresh certificate of incorporation from the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, 
Mumbai for conversion of the company from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited 
Company on July 24,2024.

For KJB & CO LLP,
Practicing Company Secretaries 
Firm Unique Identification No. – L2020MH006601
Peer Review Certificate No. – 2797/2022

Sd/-
Alpeshkumar Panchal
Partner
FCS No.: 12908
C P No.: 20120
UDIN: F012908G000794491
Date: 16/07/2025
Place: Vadodara

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms an 
integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE 1

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on the basis of the 
representations made by the Company, it has identified and complied with the various laws to 
the extent applicable to it inter-alia:
• The Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016
• Central Electricity Authority (Measures relating to Safety and Electric Supply) Regulations, 2010.
• Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme, 2020
• The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
• Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016 

We further report that during the audit period the company has:
• Allotted 2,94,47,490 equity shares as bonus shares in the ratio of 10:1 to its existing equity 
shareholders on April 03,2024
• Filed an application for Compounding Offences with respect to non-compliance under Section 
42, 62 and 102 of Companies Act, 2013 for issuing of equity shares through private placement.
• Filed an application for Adjudication of Offences with respect to non-compliance under Section 
77 and 78 of Companies Act, 2013 for delay in filling of charge.
• Filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus for Initial Public Offer with Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) on September 14, 2024 for an Initial Public Offering. 
• Acquired 33.33% of Equity share capital of Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited.
• Obtained fresh certificate of incorporation from the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, 
Mumbai for conversion of the company from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited 
Company on July 24,2024.

For KJB & CO LLP,
Practicing Company Secretaries 
Firm Unique Identification No. – L2020MH006601
Peer Review Certificate No. – 2797/2022

Sd/-
Alpeshkumar Panchal
Partner
FCS No.: 12908
C P No.: 20120
UDIN: F012908G000794491
Date: 16/07/2025
Place: Vadodara

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms an 
integral part of this report.
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Sr. 
No. Name of Director

Designation 
/ Nature of 
Directorship

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during the 
year

1. Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante

Chairperson - 
Non-Executive 
and Independent 
Director

1 1

2. Mr. Amjad Adam Arbani Non-Executive 
Director 1 1

3. Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi Non-Executive 
Director 1 1

4. Mr. Hemant Mohan Anavkar Executive Director 1 0

Annual Report on CSR Activities for Financial Year 2024-25

Annexure - “D”

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 
Company laid down its focus on the following CSR activities in line with statute governing 
the CSR and for the benefit of the public:
•	 Promoting business activity that brings simultaneous economic, social and 

environmental benefits.
•	 Encouraging innovative approaches and continuing development and application of 

best practices.
•	 Ensuring best minimum levels of performance in areas such as health & safety, the 

environment and equal opportunities.
•	 Creating a framework that assists business practices that balance profit and success 

with achievement of social and sustainability goals.
•	 Taking an active part in assisting the local community and social causes

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

3.	 Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR 
Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: 
•	 Composition of CSR Committee: https://fabtechnologies.com/csr-committee-

composition/# 
•	 CSR Policy: https://fabtechnologies.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/CSR-Policy-1.

pdf 
•	 CSR Projects: https://fabtechnologies.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/CSR-

projects-approved-by-Board-for-F.Y.-2024-25.pdf 

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR 
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: 
Not Applicable
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Sr. 
No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(1) (2) (3)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per sub-section (5) of section 135 Rs. 59,31,796.00/-

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 60,00,000.00/-

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 68,204/-

(iv)
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or activities of the previous Financial 
Years, if any

Nil

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial 
Years [(iii)-(iv)] Rs. 68,204/-

5.	   
a.	 Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:  

Rs. 29,65,89,805.90/-
b.	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5): Rs. 59,31,796.00/-
c.	 Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years: Nil
d.	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
e.	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 59,31,796.00/- 

6.	  
a.	 Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing 

Project): Rs. 60,00,000.00/-
b.	 Amount spent in Administrative overheads: Nil
c.	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
d.	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 60,00,000.00/-
e.	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

f.	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Spent for 
the Financial Year. (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
sub¬section (6) of section 135.

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-
section (5) of section 135.

Amount. Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund Amount Date of 

transfer

60,00,000.00                                                  Not Applicable
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s)

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
sub-section 
(6) of section 
135 (in Rs.)

Balance 
Amount in 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
sub-section 
(6) of section 
135 (in Rs.)

Amount 
Spent 
in the 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs)

Amount transferred 
to a Fund as specified 
under Schedule VII as 
per second proviso 
to sub-section (5) of 
section 135, if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
Financial 
Years (in Rs)

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount 
(in Rs)

Date of 
Transfer

1 FY 2023-24 - - - 7,84,692 02/08/2024 - -

2 FY 2022-23 - - - - - - -

3 FY 2021-22 - - - - - - -

Sl. 
No.

Short particulars of the 
property or asset(s)

Pin code of the 
property or 
asset(s)

Date of creation

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent

Details of entity/ Authority/ 
beneficiary of the registered 
owner

[including complete 
address and location of 
the property]

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

CSR 
Registration 
Number, if 
applicable

Name Registered 
address

Not Applicable

7.	 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three 
Financial Years: 

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No 
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, 
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also 
the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)
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For FABTECH TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

Sd/-
AMJAD ADAM ARBANI

DIRECTOR
DIN: 02718019

Sd/-
HEMANT MOHAN ANAVKAR

DIRECTOR
DIN: 00150776

Date: August 02, 2025 
Place: Mumbai

9.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Not Applicable
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Standalone Auditor’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Fabtech Technologies 
Limited
(Formerly Fabtech Technologies Private 
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying 
Standalone Financial Statements of Fabtech 
Technologies Limited (Formerly known 
as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited) 
(“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash 
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended on that date and notes 
to the financial statements, including the 
summary of the material accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial 
Statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2025, its profit including other comprehensive 
Income and its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, 
in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters Response to Key Audit Matters & Conclusion

Recoverability and valuation of allowance for 
impairment of Overdue Trade Receivables
Trade receivables, including retention money with 
customers forms a significant part of the Standalone 
Financial Statements. Customer contracts typically 
involve time consuming and complex conditions 
around closure of contracts, including technical 
acceptances. This generally leads to longer and 
significant time for realization of receivables. 
As described in Note 13 to the Standalone Financial 
Statements, the Company has outstanding trade 
receivables of ₹ 3,239.73  lakhs for more than 365 
days (“overdue trade receivables”) as on March 31, 
2025. The Company recognizes loss allowance for 
trade receivables at the expected credit loss (‘ECL’) 
as per the principles enunciated under Ind AS 109, 
Financial Instruments (‘Ind AS 109’). Assessment of the 
recoverability of trade receivables with the related 
ECL is inherently subjective and requires significant 
management judgement which includes repayment 
history and financial position of entities from whom 
these balances are recoverable, terms of underlying 
arrangements, overdue balances, market conditions 
etc. 
Considering the materiality of the amounts involved 
and significant degree of judgement and subjectivity 
involved in the estimates and assumptions used 
in determining the expected credit loss, we have 
considered this matter as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included but were not limited to the
following:
•	 Obtained an understanding of the process adopted by 

the Company in estimating expected credit loss including 
the key inputs and assumptions. Since assumptions and 
parameters are based on historical data and available 
forward looking information with respect to Trade 
Receivables, we assessed whether historical experience 
and other information was representative of current 
circumstances and are relevant; 

•	 Assessed and tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls over the process 
of estimating recoverability and the allowance for 
impairment on trade receivables in accordance with Ind 
AS 109; 

•	 Understanding the key inputs used in the provisioning 
model by the Company such as repayment history, terms 
of underlying arrangements, overdue balances, market 
conditions etc. 

•	 Tested the methodology applied in the credit loss 
provision calculation by comparing it to the requirements 
of Ind AS 109, and appropriateness and reasonableness of 
the assumptions related to credit loss rate including the 
historical bad-debts applied in their assessment of the 
receivables allowance 

Information Other than the Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
(‘other information’)
The Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information 
included in the Report of the Board of Directors.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial 
Statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone 
Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is no material 
misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors are 
responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation and presentation of these 
Standalone Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; 
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and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Standalone Financial 
Statements, management and the Board of 
Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board 
of Directors either intend to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible 
for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Standalone Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also: 
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal controls.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal 
financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by 
management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related 
to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the Standalone Financial 
Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure, and content of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements 
in the Standalone Financial Statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of 
a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the Standalone 
Financial Statements.
We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those 
charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requi rements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), 
as amended, issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we 
give in the “Annexure A” a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, 
based on our audit we report that:
(a)	We have sought and obtained all the 

information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

(b)	In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

(c)	The Balance Sheet, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement 
of Cash Flows and Statement of 
changes in Equity dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account.

(d)	In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements comply with the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act read 
with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e)	On the basis of the written 
representations received from the 
directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31 2025 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements.

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 47



(g)	With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to 
us:  

i) There Company has disclosed impact 
of pending litigation on its financial 
position in its Standalone Financial 
Statements. (Refer note no. 41 of 
Standalone Financial Statements);

ii) The Company did not have on long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there are material 
foreseeable losses as at March 31, 
2025;

iii) There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) Management has represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the note no 
54 (iv) to the Standalone Financial 
Statements, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any 

other person(s) or entity(is), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  
(b) Management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in the note no 54 (iv)  to 
the Standalone Financial Statements, 
no funds have been received by 
the Company from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
(c) Based on the audit procedures 
adopted by us, nothing has come 
to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations 
made by the Management under sub 
clause (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement; 

v) The interim special dividend was 
declared and paid by the Company 
during the year and until the date of 
this audit report is in accordance with 
section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.
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For Ajmera & Ajmera
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 018796C)

Sourabh Ajmera
Partner
(Membership No. 166931)
UDIN: 25166931BMNPUX8849 
Date: August 02, 2025	
Place: Mumbai

vi) Based on our examination, which 
included test checks, the Company 
has used accounting software 
systems for maintaining its books of 
account for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 which have the feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software 
systems. Further, during the course of 
our audit we did not come across any 
instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with and the audit trail has 
been preserved by the Company as 
per the statutory requirements for 
record retention 
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Name
of
Bank

Aggregate
Working
Capital Limits

Nature of
Current
Asset and
Security
Offered

Amount as per
Stock
Statement
Disclosed (Rs.
In Lakhs)

Amount as 
per
Books of
Accounts (Rs
in Lakhs)

Difference
(Rs. In
Lakhs)

Reasons for
Difference

Axis Bank Fund Based Facility 
Rs. 2,000 Lakhs and 
Non-Fund based 
Facility Rs. 2,275 
Lakhs

Debtors & 
Stock 

Difference is due 
to restatement of 
debtors as per Ind 
AS.

Axis Bank Q1 Debtors & 
Stock

Rs. 27,726.48 
Lakhs

Rs. 27,667.60 
Lakhs

Rs.58.88 
Lakhs

Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s 
Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on 
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the Members of 
Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly 
known as Fabtech Technologies Private 
Limited) of even date)
(i)	 In respect of the Company’s Property Plant 

and Equipment and Intangible assets;
(a)	(A) The Company has maintained 

proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of 
Property Plant and Equipment.  
(B) The Company has maintained 
proper records showing full particulars 
of intangible assets.

(b)	Property, Plant and Equipment have 
been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals 
during the year and no material 
discrepancies were identified on such 
verification.

(c)	According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on 
the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the title 
deeds of immovable properties (other 
than properties where the company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements 
are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee) as disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of 
the Company, Refer Note no. 5 of the 
Standalone Financial Statements.

(d)	According to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company 
has not revalued its property, plant 
and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) and its intangible assets. 
Accordingly, the requirements under 
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(e)	According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no proceeding 
has been initiated or pending against 
the Company as at March 31, 2025 for 
holding benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(ii)	 In respect of Company’s Inventories;
(a)	As explained to us, the inventory 

has been physically verified during 
the year by the management. As 
per information provided to us, the 
frequency of verification, coverage 
and procedure of such verification 
is reasonable and appropriate. No 
material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification.

(b)	The Company has been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 
5 crores in aggregate from Banks/
financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. Quarterly 
returns / statements filed with such 
Banks/ financial institutions are in 
agreement with the books of account 
for the year as below:
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Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances

Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year

Subsidiaries* Nil Nil Rs. 2,775.42 Lakhs Nil

Joint ventures* Nil Nil Nil Nil

Associates* Nil Nil Rs. 100 lakhs Nil

Others Nil Nil Nil Nil

Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

Subsidiaries* Nil Nil Rs. 3079.59 Lakhs Nil

Joint ventures* Nil Nil Nil Nil

Associates* Nil Nil Rs. 102.25 lakhs Nil

Others  Rs. 3170.67 lakhs Nil Nil Nil

Axis Bank Q2 Debtors & 
Stock 

Rs. 34,540.10  
Lakhs

Rs. 34,540.14  
Lakhs

Rs.. -0.04  
Lakhs

Axis Bank Q3 Debtors & 
Stock

Rs. 34,979.55 
Lakhs

Rs. 34,979.53  
Lakhs

Rs. 0.02  
Lakhs

Axis Bank Q4 Debtors & 
Stock

Rs. 42,597.17  
Lakhs

Rs. 42,606.60  
Lakhs

Rs. . -9.43  
Lakhs

Indusind 
Bank 

Fund based Facility 
Rs 1,000 Lakhs

Debtors & 
Stock

Difference is due 
to restatement of 
debtors as per Ind 
AS.Indusind 

Bank 
Q1 Debtors & 

Stock
Rs. 27,726.48   
Lakhs

Rs. 27,667.60   
Lakhs

Rs. 58.88 
Lakhs

Indusind 
Bank 

Q2 Debtors & 
Stock

Rs. 34,540.10 
Lakhs

Rs. 34,540.14 
Lakhs

Rs. -0.04 
Lakhs

Indusind 
Bank 

Q3 Debtors & 
Stock

Rs. 34,979.55 
Lakhs

Rs. 34,979.53 
Lakhs

Rs. 0.02   
Lakhs

Indusind 
Bank 

Q4 Debtors & 
Stock

Rs. 42,597.17   
Lakhs

Rs. 42,606.60 
Lakhs

Rs. -9.43   
Lakhs

* As per Companies Act, 2013.

PS: The Company has taken the Fund based Facility from RBL Bank of Rs. 368 lakhs against 100% margin of Fixed Deposits. 
Also Further the Company has taken Fund Based Facility of Rs. 1000 Lakhs from HDFC Bank against Mutual Funds.

(iii) (a) According to the information and 
explanation provided to us, the Company 
has made the Investments as per Note 
No 7 & 12 of Notes to Standalone Financial 
Statements. The company has given 
the loans to employees, Subsidiaries 

(Domestic and Foreign) and Associate as 
per Note no 8 and Note 16 of the financial 
statement. The Company has given a 
guarantee as per Note 41 of the financial 
statements.  The details for the same are 
as under:
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All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount 
of
loans/ advances in
nature of loans
- Repayable on
demand (A)

Nil Nil ₹ 3,181.84 Lakhs

- Agreement does
not specify any
terms or period of
repayment (B)

Nil Nil Nil

Total (A+B) Nil Nil ₹ 3,181.84 Lakhs

Percentage of 
loans/
advances in nature 
of
loans to the total
loans*

Nil Nil 92.65%

      (b) According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on 
the audit procedures performed by us, 
we are of the opinion that the terms and 
conditions in relation to investments 
and grant of all loans to employees, 
Subsidiaries (Domestic and Foreign) and 
Associate made are not prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company. 

      (c) According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, in the case of loans 
given, we hereby want to inform that 
loans amounting to Rs. 2,875.42 Lakhs 
(excluding amount of interest) have been 
given to two domestic and one foreign 
subsidiary which is repayable on demand. 
As informed to us, the Company has not 
demanded repayment of the loans during 
the year.  

      (d) Based on the information and 
explanations provided to us, and our 
review of the company’s records, we 

inform that there are no amounts overdue 
for more than ninety days in respect 
of loans granted to subsidiaries (both 
domestic and foreign) and associate 
companies, as these loans are repayable 
on demand and the company has not 
demanded during the year.

      (e) According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the 
Company, there is no loan or advance 
in the nature of loan granted falling due 
during the year, which has been renewed 
or extended or fresh loans granted to 
settle the overdues of existing loans given 
to same parties.

      (f) According to the information 
explanation provided to us, the Company 
has granted loans/advances in the 
nature of loans repayable on demand 
to Subsidiaries (Domestic and Foreign) 
and Associate. The details and Closing 
Balance as on March 31st, 2025 of the 
same are as follows:

*Total Loans amounting to ₹ 3,434.30 Lakhs as per Note No. 8 and 16 of the Standalone Financial Statements.
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(iv)  In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not either directly or 
indirectly, granted any loan to any of its 
directors or to any other person in whom 
the director is interested, in accordance 
with the provisions of section 185 of 
the Act and the Company has made 
investments but not more than two layers 
of investment companies in accordance 
with the provisions of section 186 of the 
Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in 
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company Refer Note No. 
7 of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

(v)  In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits from the public within the 
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 
of the Act and the rules framed there 
under. Accordingly, provisions stated 
in paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(vi)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us company is 
primarily in turnkey projects export 
business and hence the company are not 
required to be maintained the cost records 
as per Companies (Cost Records and 
audit) Rules 2014, as amended prescribed 
by central government sub section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Further, cost audit is not applicable to the 
company. 

(vii)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us:
(a) The Company has generally been 

regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, Cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities.There were 
no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods 

and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess 
and other material statutory dues 
in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a 
period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and 
explanation given to us and the records 
of the Company examined by us, there 
are no dues of income tax, goods and 
service tax, customs duty, cess and 
any other statutory dues which have 
not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

(viii)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us, there are 
no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income in the books of 
account that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Hence, the provision 
stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or borrowings or in 
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

      (b) According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our audit procedures, we 
report that the company has not been 
declared willful defaulter by any bank or 
financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

      (c) In our opinion and according to the 
information explanation provided to 
us, money raised by way of term loans 
during the year have been applied for the 
purpose for which they were raised.

      (d) According to the information and 
explanations given to us, and the 
procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the company, 
we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term 
purposes by the company.
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      (e) According to the information and 
explanation given to us and on an overall 
examination of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the Company, we report 
that the company has not taken any 
funds from an any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

      (f) According to the information and 
explanations given to us and procedures 
performed by us, we report that the 
Company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securities held in 
its securities, joint ventures or associate 
companies.

(x) (a) The Company did not raise any money 
by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. Accordingly, the provisions 
stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

      (b) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given 
to us, and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company. the 
Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully, partly or optionally convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, 
the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)
(b) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xi) (a) During the course of our audit, 
examination of the books and records of 
the Company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing 
practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, we have neither come across any 
instance of fraud by the Company nor on 
the Company.

      (b) We have not come across of any 
instance of fraud by the Company or on 
the Company during the course of audit 
of the standalone financial statement for 
the year ended March 31, 2025 accordingly 
the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)
(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, 
a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, 

in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 was not required to be filed with the 
Central Government. 

      (c) As represented to us by the 
management, there are no whistle-
blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year. Accordingly, 
the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) 
of the Order is not applicable to company.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on 
our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with Sections 
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
where applicable and the details have 
been disclosed as per note no 47 in the 
Standalone Financial Statements.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and 
explanations provided to us and our 
audit procedures, in our opinion, the 
Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature 
of its business.

      (b) We have considered the internal audit 
reports of the Company issued till date for 
the period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us, in our opinion 
during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions 
with Directors or persons connected with 
its directors and hence, provisions of 
section 192 of the Act are not applicable 
to company. Accordingly, the provisions 
stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  In our opinion, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 
45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
and accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) to (d) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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(xvii)  Based on the overall review of 
Standalone Financial Statements, the 
Company has not incurred cash losses 
in the current financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 
Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 
clause 3 (xvii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.  

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the 
statutory auditors during the year. Hence, 
the provisions stated in paragraph clause 
3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of on the basis of the financial 
ratios (as per Note no 48 to the Standalone 
Financial Statements), ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the 
Standalone Financial Statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to 
our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on 
the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not 
an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the 

date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due.
(xx)  According to the information 

and explanations given to us, the 
provisions of section 135 of the Act 
are applicable to the Company 
(a)	 According to the information 
and explanations given to us, the 
provisions of section 135 of the Act 
are applicable to the Company. The 
Company has made the required 
contributions during the year and 
there are no unspent amounts which 
are required to be transferred either to 
a Fund or to a Special Account as per 
the provisions of section 135 of the act 
read with schedule VII. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 
(b)	 There are no any ongoing 
projects of the Company and hence 
compliance under this sub-section 
(6) of section 135 of ‘the Act’ is not 
applicable. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of 
the Order is not applicable in respect 
of audit of Standalone Financial 
Statements. Accordingly, no comment 
in respect of the said clause has been 
included in the report.

For Ajmera & Ajmera
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 018796C)

Sourabh Ajmera
Partner
(Membership No. 166931)
UDIN: 25166931BMNPUX8849 
Date: August 02, 2025	
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s 
Report on the Internal Financial controls 
of even date to the Members of Fabtech 
Technologies Limited (Formerly known 
as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited) 
on the Standalone Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report 
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date.)

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal 
Financial Controls with reference to the 
Standalone Financial Statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 

In conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of Fabtech 
Technologies Limited (Formerly known as 
Fabtech Technologies Private Limited) (‘the 
Company’) as at and for the year ended 
March 31, 2025.

Management and Board of Directors 
Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board 
of Directors are responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of the Company’s 
business, including adherence to the 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the internal financial controls with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls with reference to 
the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of standalone 
financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of Standalone 
Financial Statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect 
on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
to future periods are subject to   the risk that 
the internal financial control with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to 
us, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, 
based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.                                                                 

For Ajmera & Ajmera
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 018796C)

Sourabh Ajmera
Partner
(Membership No. 166931)
UDIN: 25166931BMNPUX8849 
Date: August 02, 2025	
Place: Mumbai
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Particulars  Notes  As at 
March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 5,435.10                      499.91                         
Other Intangible assets 6 61.08                           33.67                           
Financial assets

Investments 7 2,118.41                      1,489.15                      
Loans 8 3,208.98                      343.60                         
Other financial assets 9 482.12                         209.50                         

Deferred tax asset (net) 10 149.72                         164.45                         
Total non-current assets 11,455.41                    2,740.28                      

Current assets
Inventories 11 1,599.17                      1,639.27                      
Financial assets

Investments 12 642.56                         2,099.99                      
Trade receivables 13 12,326.24                    9,407.99                      
Cash and cash equivalents 14 382.52                         2,825.88                      
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 15 1,959.25                      1,715.46                      
Loans 16 225.32                         143.67                         
Other Financial Assets 17 3,478.06                      2,506.50                      

Other current assets 18 1,775.66                      1,425.44                      
Total current assets 22,388.78                    21,764.20                    

Non-current Assets classified as held for sale 19 166.60                         340.00                         

Total assets 34,010.79                    24,844.48                    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 20 3,239.22                      294.47                         
Other equity 21 12,514.74                    12,121.29                    
Total equity 15,753.96                    12,415.76                    

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 22 53.44                           26.88                           
Lease Liabilities 23 2,647.85                      117.66                         

Provisions 24 78.58                           74.74                           
Total non-current liabilities 2,779.87                      219.28                         

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 25 3,271.36                      817.55                         
Lease Liabilities 23 254.74                         144.47                         
Trade payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 26 1,606.17                      1,175.79                      
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprise 26 5,830.46                      4,553.78                      

Other financial liabilities 27 10.65                           107.04                         
Other current liabilities 28 3,936.30                      5,233.33                      
Provisions 24 84.85                           85.02                           
Current tax liabilities (net) 29 482.43                         92.46                           
Total current liabilities 15,476.96                    12,209.44                    
Total liabilities 18,256.83                    12,428.72                    

Total equity and liabilities 34,010.79                    24,844.48                    

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 - 55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Ajmera And Ajmera For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 018796C CIN: U74999MH2018PLC316357

Sourabh Ajmera Hemant Mohan Anavkar Amjad Adam Arbani
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 166931 DIN: 00150776 DIN: 02718019
UDIN: 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Kalpesh Chauhan Neetu Sunil Buchasia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: ACS 61496

Ashwani Singh
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Fabtech Technologies Limited

25166931BMNPUX8849

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars  Notes  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Income
Revenue from operations 30 23,642.35                     22,502.59                     
Other income 31 1,022.73                       452.18                          
Total income 24,665.08                     22,954.77                     

Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 32 12,996.84                     12,018.34                     
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 33 40.09                            84.26                            
Employee benefits expense 34 2,442.36                       1,947.22                       
Finance costs 35 195.18                          186.85                          
Depreciation and amortization expense 36 218.38                          205.65                          
Other expenses 37 5,756.42                       5,031.49                       
Total expenses 21,649.27                     19,473.80                     

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,015.81                       3,480.97                       

Exceptional items 38 2,197.80                       -                                

Profit/ (loss) before tax 5,213.61                       3,480.97                       

Tax expense
Current tax 10 1,358.00                       896.00                          
(Excess) / Short provision for tax relating to prior year 10 (1.21)                             -                                
Deferred tax 10 19.25                            (37.18)                          

Total tax expense 1,376.04                       858.82                          

Profit for the Year 3,837.57                       2,622.15                       

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan (a) 43 (17.94)                          (0.77)                             
Income tax effect (b) 10 (4.52)                             (0.19)                             

Total other comprehensive income (a-b) (13.42)                          (0.58)                             

3,824.15                       2,621.57                       

Earnings per share
Basic Earning/(Loss) per share (INR) 40 11.85                            8.13                              
Diluted Earning/(Loss) per share (INR) 40 11.85                            8.13                              

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 - 55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Ajmera And Ajmera For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 018796C CIN: U74999MH2018PLC316357

Sourabh Ajmera Hemant Mohan Anavkar Amjad Adam Arbani
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 166931 DIN: 00150776 DIN: 02718019
UDIN: 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Kalpesh Chauhan Neetu Sunil Buchasia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: ACS 61496

Ashwani Singh
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Total Comprehensive Income for the year Comprising Profit / (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the year

Fabtech Technologies Limited

25166931BMNPUX8849

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss  as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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 For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 5,213.61                      3,480.97                      
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses 218.38                         205.65                         
Finance cost 194.33                         186.50                         
Interest income (359.34)                       (187.39)                       
(Gain)/loss on sale of fixed assets (0.31)                           -                              
Fair value (gain)/loss on Mutual Fund Investments (2,358.69)                     (26.67)                         
Provision/(Reversal of provision) for Doubtful Debt and advances (213.63)                       (42.80)                         
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 47.09                           (25.19)                         
Remeasurement (gain)/loss on the defined benefit plans (17.94)                         (0.77)                           
Liabilities no longer required written back (7.97)                           -                              
Bad Debts written-off -                              7.47                             

Operating profit before working capital changes 2,715.53                      3,597.77                      

Changes in Operating assets
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 40.09                           84.26                           
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (2,761.10)                     618.78                         
Decrease/(Increase) in other current assets (350.22)                       523.59                         
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets (4,286.41)                     (376.04)                       

Changes in Operating liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables 1,724.42                      304.93                         
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions 3.68                             (72.59)                         
(Decrease)/Increase in other financial liabilities (96.39)                         117.10                         
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities (1,297.03)                     1,939.86                      

Cash generated/(used) in operations (4,307.43)                     6,737.65                      
Income tax paid (966.81)                       (771.25)                       

Net cash flows generated/(used) in Operating Activities (A) (5,274.24)                     5,966.41                      

Cash flow from Investing Activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,284.49)                     (77.62)                         
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1.12                             -                              
(Investment)/Redemption in/of debentures -                              1,012.50                      
Investment in Equity shares of subsidiaries, associates and other entities (629.26)                       (1,489.15)                     
Net proceeds from (purchase)/sale of investments 3,989.52                      (2,045.56)                     
Net proceeds from (investment)/maturity in/of fixed deposits (243.78)                       (383.56)                       
Interest received 348.20                         177.44                         

Net cash flows generated/(used) in Investing Activities (B) 1,181.31                      (2,805.96)                     

Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital                                  -   1,569.48                      
Payment of Dividend                        (485.95) -                              
(Repayment) of borrowings                                  -   (2,636.81)                     
Proceeds from borrowings 2,480.36                      -                              
Payment towards Lease Liability (179.73)                       (144.78)                       
Finance cost (165.11)                       (175.41)                       

Net cash flows generated/(used) in Financing Activities (C) 1,649.57                      (1,387.51)                     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,443.36)                     1,772.94                      
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year 2,825.88                      1,052.94                      
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year 382.52                         2,825.88                      

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 14)
Balances with banks

- In current accounts 340.88                         2,597.79                      
- Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 38.78                           215.15                         

Cash on hand 2.86                             12.94                           
Total cash and bank balances at the end of the Year 382.52                         2,825.88                      

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 - 55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Ajmera And Ajmera For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 018796C CIN: U74999MH2018PLC316357

Sourabh Ajmera Hemant Mohan Anavkar Amjad Adam Arbani
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 166931 DIN: 00150776 DIN: 02718019
UDIN: 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Kalpesh Chauhan Neetu Sunil Buchasia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: ACS 61496

Ashwani Singh
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Fabtech Technologies Limited

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows as
specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 (as amended).

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition).

Particulars

25166931BMNPUX8849

Standalone Statement of Cashflow as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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(A) Equity share capital

Particulars Balance at 
April 01, 2024

 Change during 
the year 

 Balance at 
March 31, 2025 

Number of Shares 29,44,749 2,94,47,490 3,23,92,239
Amount of Share Capital 294.47 2944.75 3239.22

Particulars Balance at 
April 01, 2023

 Change during 
the year 

 Balance at 
March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares 27,85,895 1,58,854 29,44,749
Amount of Share Capital 278.59 15.89 294.47

(B) Other equity

Particulars  Capital reserve 
 Bonus shares 

issued pending 
allotment 

 Securities 
Premium 

 Retained 
earnings 

 Other 
comprehensive 

income 
 Total 

Balance at April 01, 2024 1.00                     2,944.75                -                       9,188.79              (13.25)                  12,121.29             
Changes during the period  

- Profit for the year -                       -                         -                       3,837.57              -                       3,837.57               
- Premium received on Shares issued during the Year -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                        
- Add: Bonus shares issued -                       (2,944.75)               -                       -                       -                       (2,944.75)              
- Less: Capitalisation of reserves against issue of bonus shares -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                        
- Less: Dividend distributed (485.95)                (485.95)                 
- Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes) -                       -                         -                       -                       (13.42)                  (13.42)                   

Balance at March 31, 2025 1.00                     -                         -                       12,540.40            (26.67)                  12,514.74             

Particulars  Capital reserve 
 Bonus shares 

issued pending 
allotment 

 Securities 
Premium 

 Retained 
earnings 

 Other 
comprehensive 

income 
 Total 

Balance at April 01, 2023 1.00                     -                         -                       7,957.80              (12.67)                  7,946.13               
Changes during the period  

- Profit for the year -                       -                         -                       2,622.15              -                       2,622.15               
- Premium received on Shares issued during the Year -                       -                         1,553.59              -                       -                       1,553.59               
- Add: Bonus shares issued pending allotment -                       2,944.75                -                       -                       -                       2,944.75               
- Less: Capitalisation of reserves against issue of bonus shares -                       -                         (1,553.59)             (1,391.16)             -                       (2,944.75)              
- Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes) -                       -                         -                       -                       (0.58)                    (0.58)                     

Balance at March 31, 2024 1.00                     2,944.75                -                       9,188.79              (13.25)                  12,121.29             

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  1 - 55 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Ajmera And Ajmera For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Fabtech Technologies Limited 
Firm Registration No.: 018796C CIN: U74999MH2018PLC316357

Sourabh Ajmera Hemant Mohan Anavkar Amjad Adam Arbani
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 166931 DIN: 00150776 DIN: 02718019
UDIN: 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Kalpesh Chauhan Neetu Sunil Buchasia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: ACS 61496

Ashwani Singh
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

25166931BMNPUX8849

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 61



Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW

Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited) 
(“FTL or the Company”) is a public limited company having Corporate Identity Number 
U74999MH2018PLC316357. The Company is engaged in building pharmaceutical, biotech and 
healthcare capabilities for wide range of customers by offering comprehensive start to finish 
turnkey solutions, which includes supplying pharmaceutical machineries / equipment, in house 
designing engineering, procurement, installation, validation and to undertake other activities 
required in various projects including standalone equipment supply and installation.
The Company is incorporated and domiciled under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable 
in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 715, Janki Centre, off. Veera Desai Road, 
Andheri West, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400053.
The Company has converted from private limited company to public limited company, pursuant 
to a special resolution in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on April 03, 
2024 and consequently the name of the company has changed to Fabtech Technologies Limited 
pursuant to a fresh certificate of incorporation by the Registrar of Companies on July 24, 2024.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

2.1 Basis for preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
under the historical cost convention on accrual basis as per the Ind AS prescribed under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standard) Rules, 2015.

The company has adopted Ind AS from April 01, 2023 with effective transition date of April 01,2022 
and accordingly, these financial statements together with the comparative reporting period have 
been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles as laid down in 
Ind AS, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with relevant rules 
issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

The preparation of these financial information in conformity with Ind AS requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in 
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree 
of judgment or complexity, or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to these 
financial statements are as disclosed in these financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain 
financial assets and liabilities (including investments), defined benefit plans, plan assets and 
share-based payments.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Act and Ind AS 1, 
Presentation of Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting 
policies are applied consistently to all the financial years presented in the financial statements.

2.2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read along with companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial 
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the 
periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

A) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals, except 
when otherwise indicated.

B) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make estimates, judgements and assumptions.
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by 
definition, may differ from the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in 
applying the Company’s accounting policies.
These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities 
as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised and future periods affected. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes 
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial 
statements

Critical estimates and judgements 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

•	 Estimation of defined benefit obligation – Note 43
•	 Impairment of trade receivables – Note 14

Estimation and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience 
and other factors including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the 
Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

C) Current versus Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a)	 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in the company’s normal 
operating cycle;

b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c)	 it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d)	 it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a)	 it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;
b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c)	 it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d)	 the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 

at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of 
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of product and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle 
as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities

D) Revenue recognition

To determine revenue recognition, the Company follows a 5-step process:
1.	 Identifying the contract with a customer 
2.	 Identifying the performance obligations 
3.	 Determining the transaction price 
4.	 Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations 
5.	 Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied
Under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognised upon transfer of 
control of promised goods or services to customers. Revenue is measured at the transaction price 
agreed with the customers received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance 
bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if 
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of 
consideration is probable and determinable. Sales are recognised when control of the products 
has transferred, the customer has full discretion over price to sell/ use of the product, and there is 
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products 
The Company is providing start to finish turnkey solutions, which includes supplying pharmaceutical 
machineries / equipment, in house designing engineering, procurement, installation, validation 
and to undertake other activities required in various projects including standalone equipment 
supply and installation. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
receivable by the Company for goods supplied and services rendered, excluding trade discounts 
and applicable taxes. It is recognized when the following criteria are met: 
•	 The control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer in accordance with the 

contractual terms. 
•	 The revenue amount can be reliably measured. 
•	 It is probable that the economic benefits from the transaction will flow to the Company. 
•	 The costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. 
Revenue recognition is classified as follows:

i. Turnkey Contracts

Turnkey contracts typically involve the design, engineering, supply, installation, and commissioning 
of facilities and their internal infrastructure. The contract price is usually a fixed consideration that 
varies on a case-by-case basis.
Such contracts usually represent a single performance obligation, where control of goods and 
services is transferred progressively over the contract period. The performance obligation is 
considered satisfied upon the completion of contractual scope and formal customer acceptance. 
Contract revenue and related costs, where execution spans multiple accounting periods, are 
recognized based on actual shipments as of the reporting date.
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ii. Sale of Services

Revenue from services such as management consultancy and installation services is recognized 
when the services are performed in accordance with the terms agreed with the customer. The 
transaction price represents the amount agreed with the customer, excluding trade discounts 
and applicable taxes.

iii. Export Incentive:  under various scheme notified by government has been recognized on the 
basis of credits afforded in the passbook or amount received.

iv. Interest & Dividend Income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the interest rate applicable.
Income from dividend is recognized when right to receive payment is established.

v. Other Income

Other Incomes are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be 
measured reliably.

E) Product Warranty Expenses

The product warranties are supported by the vendor’s own warranty on the products. As this 
is a back-to-back warranty arrangement, no separate provision for warranty costs has been 
established. Any potential future warranty claims for the materials supplied will be covered by the 
company’s vendor.

F) Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of 
acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation or accumulated impairment loss, if 
any. 

Cost of item of property, plant and equipment includes purchase price, taxes, non- refundable 
duties, freight and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing assets to their working 
condition for their intended use. Expenses capitalized include applicable borrowing costs for 
qualifying assets, if any.

This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, 
plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or 
service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of 
the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises 
major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate 
items An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment is 
reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if any.

Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are recognized as capital work in progress.
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Class of Asset Useful life (in years) 

Furniture & Fixture 10

Motor Vehicle 6

Office Equipment 5

Computer and Peripherals 3

Class of Asset Useful life as per 
Schedule II (in years) Useful life adopted (in years)

Furniture & Fixture – Leasehold 
Improvement

10 9

G) Intangible assets, Amortization and useful live

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. All intangible 
assets are with finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of business is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 
loss. Goodwill is assessed at every balance sheet date for any impairment.

Intangible assets are only recognized when it is probable that associated future economic benefits 
would flow to the Company.

Intangibles in respect of non- compete and customer relationships acquired in a business 
combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and 
are subsequently carried at costs less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.

Intangible assets in respect of software’s acquired separately are measured on initial recognition 
at cost. Following initial recognition, they are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are derecognised either on their disposal or where no future economic benefits 
are expected from their use.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assets are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite useful lives are reported at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

H) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful 
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
The estimates of useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Estimated useful life of following assets is different than useful life as prescribed in schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
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Asset Years

Software 6

Leasehold Improvement is estimate to be depreciate over the period of lease terms of 9 years.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 
the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are 
recognized in statement of profit and loss within other income or other expenses.

These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use 
and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives of assets 
and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised.

Assets individually costing INR 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under non-current assets.

I) Amortisation of Intangible assets

Intangible assets except Goodwill are amortised in Statement of Profit or Loss over their estimated 
useful lives, from the date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of 
consumption of economic benefits of the asset. Accordingly, at present, these are being amortised 
on straight line basis.
The estimated useful lives of Intangible Assets are as follows:

The useful lives are reviewed atleast at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are 
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

J) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment, capital work in progress and intangible 
assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date, to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amounts are estimated at each 
reporting date. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In 
assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a prediscount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the cash generating 
unit exceeds the corresponding recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised. Impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent 
period unless the impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an exceptional 
nature that is not expected to recur, and subsequent external events have occurred that reverse 
the effect of that event.
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K) Borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such assets. A qualifying 
asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during which the active 
development is delayed beyond reasonable time due to other than temporary interruption. All 
other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

L) Inventories

Inventories of traded goods, components and stores consumables and packing material are 
valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes purchase price, duties and taxes 
(other than those subsequently recoverable by the Company from taxing authorities), freight 
inward and other expenditure in bringing inventories to present locations and conditions. In 
determining the cost, Firstin-First-out (FIFO) method is used. 
Net Realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

M) Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts.

Company as a lessee

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing 
arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. The 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an 
identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset 
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. 
The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortization, 
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. 
The right-of-use assets is amortized using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. 
The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are 
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For 
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. When the lease liability is remeasured due 
to change in contract terms, a corresponding change is made to the carrying amount of right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in the profit and loss account if the carrying amount of right-of-use 
asset is reduced to zero.

Company as lessor

The Company as a lessor, classifies leases as either operating lease or finance lease. A lease 
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an underlying asset. Initially asset held under finance lease is derecognised in 
balance sheet and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the 
lease. Finance income is recognized over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant 
periodic rate of return on Company’s net investment in the lease. A lease which is not classified 
as a finance lease is an operating lease. Accordingly, the Company recognises lease payments 
as income on a straight-line basis in case of assets given on operating leases. 
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The Company presents underlying assets subject to operating lease in its balance sheet under 
the respective class of asset.

N) Employee benefits

The Company’s obligation towards various employee benefits have been recognized as follows:

Short term benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employees services are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and 
ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for 
employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees. 
The company recognizes a liability & expense for bonuses. The company recognizes a provision 
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive 
obligation.

Post-employment Benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund, employee state insurance and other regulatory funds 
contributions as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the 
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans 
and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Defined benefit plans

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit schemes i.e. gratuity and post-retirement benefit schemes, the cost of 
providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation 
being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net 
defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. 
Such re-measurements are not re-classified to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the subsequent 
period. The service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as 
a net expense within employment costs and are recongnised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or 
when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.
The defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of 
the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits such as annual leave and 
sick leave are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to 
be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date 
using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each year 
end balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to Other Comprehensive Income in 
the period in which they arise. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are 
recognized based on actuarial valuation.
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Termination Benefits

Termination Benefits, in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits or Termination Benefits arising 
from restructuring, are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The Company recognizes 
Termination Benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

(a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of these benefits, or
(b) when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to 
their present value.

O) Foreign exchange transactions

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in 
Indian rupee (INR), which is Fabtech Technologies Limited’s functional and presentation currency

(ii) Transactions and balances:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions. Year-end monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the year-end foreign exchange rates. Non- Monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date of transaction. Non-monetary items, measured at fair value denominated in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates that existed when the fair value was 
determined.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items 
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair 
value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized
in other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or profit and 
loss, respectively).

P) Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized 
as a finance cost. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation 
or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made.

Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies
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Contingent assets are generally not recognized but are disclosed when inflow of economic benefit 
is probable.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Q) Income taxes

Tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is 
based on taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it 
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further 
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is 
calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on temporary differences between 
the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using liability method. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast, 
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 
is settled or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the carrying value of 
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the 
same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and current 
tax liabilities within that jurisdiction and there is an intention to settle the asset & liability on a net 
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit and 
loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, in which case tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity.

R) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of the equity shares 
outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit 
or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

S) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
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Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial 
asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, 
the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it qualifies to recognized otherwise. However, trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at Transaction 
price.

(a) Financial assets

a. (i) Classification :

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, 
or through profit or loss), and
ii. those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the cash flows

i. Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held 
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument 
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the 
financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial 
assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI. However, the 
Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange 
gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned 
while holding a FVTOCI instrument is reported as interest income using the effective interest rate 
method.
The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such 
an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial
recognition of such equity investments.

Fair value through the statement of profit and loss (FVTPL)
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Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income is carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss. Fair value changes are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss at each reporting period.

iii. Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances consist of:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and 
other short term deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of less than one year from the date 
of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
(ii) Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted 
for withdrawal and usage.

iv. Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets and unbilled revenues which are not fair valued through profit or loss.
The Company recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables and unbilled 
revenues that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets whose credit 
risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months 
expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses 
is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial 
recognition. The Impairment losses and reversals are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

v. De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have 
to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a 
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. On de-recognition of a Financial Asset (except 
for Financial Assets measured at FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the 
consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company 
are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of 
money is significant. Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured 
at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or 
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit 
and loss.
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De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations 
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The differences between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
& Loss.

Derivative financial instruments 

The Company engages in forward contracts primarily to mitigate risks arising from fluctuations in 
foreign currency related to its existing financial assets and liabilities, specific commitments, and 
anticipated transactions. These derivative contracts are used exclusively for hedging purposes 
and are not employed for trading or speculative activities.

In its hedging strategy, the Company designates certain instruments, including derivatives and, 
in some cases, non-derivative financial instruments related to foreign currency risk, as fair value 
hedges. For hedges involving foreign exchange risk on commitments, the Company also applies 
fair value hedge accounting.

Under fair value hedge, any changes in the fair value of the designated portion of the hedging 
instruments that qualify are recognized immediately in the profit or loss statement. This is done 
in conjunction with the recognition of any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability 
attributable to the hedged risk.

Derivatives are initially recognized and measured at fair value from the date the derivative 
contract is entered into. Subsequently, they are re-measured at their fair value at the end of each 
reporting period.

T) Investment in Joint Ventures & associates

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties have the joint control of the arrangement 
and have rights to the net assets to joint arrangement. Joint control is contractually agreed sharing 
of control of an arrangement which exists only when decisions about the relevant activity require 
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Investment in joint ventures are carried at 
cost less accumulated impairment, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying 
amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. 
On disposal of investments in joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence. Investment in associates 
are carried at Transaction price.

U) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount 
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and 
a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from 
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are 
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal 
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value 
less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment 
loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the 
non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or 
amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the 
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.
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Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as 
held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of 
a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the 
balance sheet

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified 
as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of 
operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of 
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued 
operations are presented separately in the statement of profit and loss.

V) Business Combinations

Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, except 
for common control transactions which are accounted using the pooling of interest method that 
is accounted at carrying values. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the 
assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date i.e. 
the date on which control is acquired.

Goodwill arising on business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for noncontrolling 
interests, and any previous interest held, over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and 
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses if any.

W) Segment Reporting

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the information reported to the 
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment 
of segment performance based on product and services.

4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as issued from time to 
time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments 
to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
7 Investments - Non-current

Particulars

No of units  Amount No of units  Amount 
A. Investments carried at cost
(a) Equity Investments in Subsidiaries (Unquoted)
Equity Share of  10/- each in FT Institutions Private Limited 9,999.00                                                   1.00 9,999.00                                                   1.00 
Fabtech Technologies LLC,UAE 100.00                                                   23.77 100.00                                                   22.69 
(b) Equity Investments in Associate (Unquoted)
Equity Share of  10/- each in Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited 3,34,950.00                                          799.99                                 -                                   -   
B. Investments carried at fair value
(a) Membership in LLP Subsidiary (Unquoted)
FABL International Technologies LLP (Formerly known as Fablife 
Process Technologies LLP)

-                                                    1,293.65 -                                                    1,465.36 

(b) Equity Investment in other (Unquoted)
Equity Share of  10/- each in Fillpac Solutions Private Limited 1,000.00                                                      -                         1,000.00                              0.10 
Total 2,118.41                      1,489.15                      
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,118.41                      1,489.15                      
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investment 0.10                            -                              

8 Loans - Non Current

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Unsecured
Loans to related parties (Receivable on demand) (Refer Note 47)                       3,181.85                          341.40 
Loans to employees                            27.20                              2.21 
Less: Allowance for doubtful loans                           (0.07)                           (0.01) 

3,208.98                      343.60                        
Note:
Considered good 3,181.85                      341.40                        
Considered doubtful, provided 27.20                          2.21                            

9 Other Non Current Financial Assets 

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good)                          128.96                          123.97 
Balance in Escrow A/c (Thermax) 13.33                                                          -   
Deposits (With remaining maturity of more than 12 months) *                          254.30                                 -   
Deposit under protest (Refer Note 41)                            85.53                            85.53 

482.12                        209.50                        

10 Income Tax

a) Tax expenses

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended:

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025 

 As at 
 March 31, 2024 

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge                       1,358.00                          896.00 
(Excess) / Short provision for tax relating to prior year (1.21)                           -                              
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences                           (4.89) (77.95)                         
Deferred tax impact on Right- of- use asset                            24.14                            40.77 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,376.04                      858.82                        

OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025 

 As at 
 March 31, 2024 

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans                           (4.52)                           (0.19) 
Income tax charge to OCI                           (4.52)                           (0.19) 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for:

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025 

 As at 
 March 31, 2024 

Accounting profit before income tax net total income 5,213.61                      3,480.97                      
Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate 1,312.27                      876.16                        
[March 31, 2025: 25.17%
March 31, 2024:  25.17%]
(Excess) / Short provision for tax relating to prior year (1.21)                           -                              
Income Exempt from Tax/Items not deductible 45.73                          19.84                          
Deferred tax on other adjustments

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 19.25                          (37.18)                         
At the effective income tax rate 1,376.04                      858.82                        
[March 31, 2025: 26.39%
March 31, 2024: 24.67%]
Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss 1,377.25                      858.82                        

 As at March 31, 2024  As at 
 March 31, 2025 

Total 

1) Investment in Fabtech Technologies LLC, UAE of INR 22.69 lakhs represents committment as of 31st March, 2024. To the extent of this committment, liability has been recorded in FY 2023-24. However, 
the committment has been fulfiled in FY 2024-25 and the said liability has been settled (Refer note 27)

Total 
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

b) Deferred tax

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025 

 As at March 31, 2024 

Deferred tax liabilities
                      (757.84)                         (69.18) 

On fair valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities                           (9.28) (1.01)                           
Gross deferred tax liabilities                       (767.12)                         (70.20) 

Deferred tax assets
On account of provision for gratuity & leave encashment                            41.14 40.21                          
On account of impairment of financial assets                            46.86 100.91                        
On account of lease liabilities                          730.53 65.97                          
On account of security deposit                            27.80 4.35                            
On account of trade payable                            56.11 8.22                            
On account of carring amounts of property, plant and equipment                                 -   14.99                          
On account of other adjustments                            14.40 -                              
Gross deferred tax assets                          916.83                          234.65 

Net deferred tax assets 149.72                        164.45                        

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities / (deferred tax assets) (net):

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Balance at the beginning of the year                          164.45                          127.08 
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss                         (19.25)                            37.18 
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI                              4.52                              0.19 
Closing balance                          149.72                          164.45 

11 Inventories

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

At lower of cost and net realizable value
Stock in Trade                          579.97                          684.66 
Good in Transit                       1,019.20                          954.61 

1,599.17                      1,639.27                      
Note - There is no amount written down from the inventory during the year.

12 Investments - Current 

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

  -   Mutual Fund (Debt Fund)# 590.75                        2,099.99                      
  -   Mutual Fund (Equity Fund) 5.09                            -                              
  -   AIF Fund - Category II 37.94                          -                              
  -   Mutual Fund (Gold Fund) 8.78                            -                              

642.56                        2,099.99                      
Aggregate amount of quoted investments                          642.56                       2,099.99 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments                          642.56                       2,099.99 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investment                                 -                                   -   

13 Trade receivable

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Considered good (including retention money)                     12,495.46                       9,790.84 
                      (169.22)                       (382.85) 

Total 12,326.24                    9,407.99                      

Further classified as:
Receivable from related parties (Refer note 47) 2,839.22                      2,666.20                      
Receivable from others 9,656.24                      7,124.64                      
Total 12,495.46                    9,790.84                      

a) Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31, 2025

Particulars/ Period  Less Than 6 Months  6 Months to 1 Year  1-2 Years  2-3 Years  3 Years or More  Total 

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 7,332.84                      1,922.89                      751.35                        1,068.23                      1,420.15                      12,495.46                    
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit 
risk -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Unbilled dues -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Total 7,332.84                      1,922.89                      751.35                        1,068.23                      1,420.15                      12,495.46                    

The Company applies the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on trade receivables. For this purpose, the Company follows a “simplified approach” for
recognition of impairment loss allowance on the trade receivable balances. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. Further, need for incremental
provisions have been evaluated on a case to case basis considering forward-looking information based on the financial health of a customer if available, litigations/disputes etc.

Total

 Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

# Mutual Fund in HDFC Ultra Short Term fund - Regular (Growth) of Rs. 483. 79 lakhs are marked as lien for Cash Credit Facility provided by HDFC bank (Refer Note 25)

Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Total

Unsecured

Difference between carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 79



Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31, 2024

Particulars/ Period  Less Than 6 Months  6 Months to 1 Year  1-2 Years  2-3 Years  3 Years or More  Total 

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 5,587.99                      376.17                        402.31                        1,229.19                      2,195.18                      9,790.83                      
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Unbilled dues -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              

Total 5,587.99                      376.17                        402.31                        1,229.19                      2,195.18                      9,790.83                      

b) Loss allowances as at March 31, 2025
Particulars/ Period  Less than 6 months  6 months - 1 year  1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years  > 3 years  Total 

Undisputed – considered good 7,332.84                      1,922.89                      751.35                        1,068.23                      1,420.15                      12,495.46                    
Expected Loss rate (%) 0.25% 2.50% 2.50% 3.33% 3.41% 1.35%
Expected Credit Losses 18.38                          48.05                          18.79                          35.54                          48.45                          169.22                        
Carrying amount Trade receivables (net of impairments) 7,314.46                      1,874.84                      732.56                        1,032.69                      1,371.69                      12,326.24                    

Loss allowances as at March 31, 2024
Particulars/ Period  Less than 6 months  6 months - 1 year  1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years  > 3 years  Total 

Undisputed – considered good 5,587.99                      376.17                        402.31                        1,229.19                      2,195.18                      9,790.83                      
Expected Loss rate (%) 0.25% 1.79% 7.91% 8.47% 10.30% 3.91%
Expected Credit Losses 13.97                          6.72                            31.81                          104.17                        226.18                        382.85                        
Carrying amount Trade receivables (net of impairments) 5,574.02                      369.45                        370.50                        1,125.02                      1,969.00                      9,407.98                      

14 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

                         340.88                       2,597.79 
                           38.78                          215.15 
                             2.86                            12.94 

382.52                        2,825.88                      

15 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

In deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months*                       1,959.25                       1,715.46 
1,959.25                      1,715.46                      

* Classification of deposits:

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Fixed Deposits with Original maturity of less than 3 months                            38.78                          215.15 
Fixed Deposit (with Original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months)                       1,959.25                       1,715.46 
Fixed Deposits (With remaining maturity of more than 12 months) 254.30                                                        -   

Amount marked as lien 1,768.00                                               735.56 
Free amount 484.33                                              1,195.05 

16 Loans - Current

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Unsecured
Loans to employees                          229.20                          148.34 

                           13.07                            13.43 
Less: Allowance for doubtful loans                         (16.96)                         (18.10) 

225.32                        143.67                        
Note:
Considered good 13.07                          13.43                          
Considered doubtful, provided 229.20                        148.34                        

17 Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Balance with government authorities                       2,710.05                       1,797.40 
Export benefits and entitlements                          606.66                          636.45 
Security Deposits (Unsecured, considered good) **                          126.62                            38.83 
Interest accrued on bank deposits                              0.37                                 -   
Forward contract receivable                              0.54                                 -   
Others (Reimbursement of Expenses receivable) (Refer Note 47)                            33.83                            33.83 

3,478.06                      2,506.50                      

18 Other Current assets 

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Advance for goods and services
to related parties (Refer Note 47)                          610.61                          585.12 
to others                          906.28                          785.12 

Prepaid Expenses                          258.77                            55.20 
1,775.66                      1,425.44                      

19 Non-current Assets classified as held for sale

No of units  Amount No of units  Amount 
Equity Share of  10/- each in TSA Process Equipment Pvt. Ltd. (Refer 
Note 52)

2,23,440.00                                          166.60 4,56,000.00                                          340.00 

Total 2,23,440.00                 166.60                        4,56,000.00                 340.00                        

Balances with banks:
In current accounts

Total 

Loan to others

Total

Total
** Security deposits include margin money deposit amounting to Rs. 17.26 Lakhs (FY 2024-25) and Rs. 38.83 Lakhs (FY 2023-24)

Total

Total

Cash on hand
Fixed deposits with Original maturity of less than 3 months *

Particulars
 As at 

 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 
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20 Equity share capital

Particulars

No of shares  Amount No of shares  Amount 
a) Authorized Share Capital

Equity Shares of INR 10 each 4,50,00,000       4,500.00            4,50,00,000         4,500.00               

b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up: 
Equity Shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 3,23,92,239       3,239.22            29,44,749            294.47                  
Total 3,23,92,239       3,239.22            29,44,749            294.47                  

c) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount outstanding

Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 29,44,749          294.47                27,85,895            278.59                  

-                     1,58,854              15.89                    
Add: Bonus issue of shares 2,94,47,490       2,944.75            
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,23,92,239       3,239.22            29,44,749            294.47                  

d)

e) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

No of shares % No of shares % 
Mr. Aasif Khan 1,84,56,779       56.98% 16,77,889            56.98%
Mr. Aarif Khan 45,70,500          14.11% 4,15,500              14.11%
Mr. Hemant Anavkar 38,08,761          11.76% 3,46,251              11.76%
Mrs. Manisha Anavkar 38,08,772          11.76% 3,46,252              11.76%

f) Details of Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025

Promoter name
 No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

year 

 Change during 
the year 

 No. of shares at 
the end of year  % of total shares  % Change during 

the year 

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Promoter
Mr. Aasif Khan            16,77,889         1,67,78,890         1,84,56,779 56.98% 1000.00%
Mr. Aarif Khan              4,15,500            41,55,000            45,70,500 14.11% 1000.00%
Mr. Hemant Anavkar              3,46,251            34,62,510            38,08,761 11.76% 1000.00%
Mrs. Manisha Anavkar              3,46,252            34,62,520            38,08,772 11.76% 1000.00%
Total            27,85,892         2,78,58,920         3,06,44,812 94.61% 4000.00%

As at March 31, 2024

Promoter name
 No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

year 

 Change during 
the year 

 No. of shares at 
the end of year  % of total shares  % Change during 

the year 

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Promoter
Mr. Aasif Khan            16,61,999                 15,890            16,77,889 56.98% 0.96%
Mr. Aarif Khan              4,15,500                         -                4,15,500 14.11% 0.00%
Mr. Hemant Anavkar              3,46,251                         -                3,46,251 11.76% 0.00%
Mrs. Manisha Anavkar              3,46,250                           2              3,46,252 11.76% 0.00%
Total            27,70,000                 15,892            27,85,892 94.61%

g)

Particulars

Outstanding at the end of the year

Name of the shareholder

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above 
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date :
 As at 

 March 31, 2025 
 As at March 31, 2024 

No of sharesNo of shares

2,94,47,490                                      
Nil

-                                                        2,94,47,490                                      

Add: Preferential Issue of shares

 As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The Company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend, if proposed, by the Board of Directors will be subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 As at 
 March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

 As at March 31, 2024 

Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts for consideration other than cash
Equity shares bought back by the company

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalisation of reserves

NilNil

Nil
Nil
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21 Other equity

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2025 

 As at 
 March 31, 2024 

i) Bonus shares issued pending allotment
Opening balance 2,944.75              -                        
Add: Bonus shares issued pending allotment -                       2,944.75               
Less: Bonus alloted (2,944.75)             
Closing balance -                       2,944.75               

ii) Securities Premium
Opening balance -                       -                        
Add: Premium received on shares issued during the year -                       1,553.59               
Less: Capitalisation of reserves against issue of bonus shares              (1,553.59) 
Closing balance -                       -                        

iii) Capital Reserve
Opening balance 1.00                      1 .00                      
Add: Changes during the year -                       -                        
Closing balance                       1.00                        1.00 

iv) Retained Earnings
Opening balance                9,188.79                 7,957.80 
Add: Net Profit/(Net loss) for the current period                3,837.57                 2,622.15 
Less: Dividend distributed                (485.95)                            -   
Less: Capitalisation of reserves against issue of bonus shares                           -                (1,391.16) 
Closing balance              12,540.41                 9,188.79 

v) Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance                  (13.25)                   (12.67) 
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes)                  (13.42)                     (0.58) 
Closing balance                  (26.67)                   (13.25) 

Total              12,514.74               12,121.29 

Definition for Other Equity

v) Other Comprehensive Income: Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense (including reclassification adjustments) that are not recognised in profit or 
loss as required or permitted by Ind AS.

ii) Securities Premium: Securities premium is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.

iii) Capital Reserve: The excess of fair value of net assets acquired over consideration paid in a common control transaction is recognised as capital reserve.

iv) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings represent the amount that can be distributed as dividend considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year, Special 
dividends of Rs. 1.50 per share are distributed to the equity shareholders by the Company.

i) Bonus shares issued pending allotment: Reserve balance kept aside, to be adjusted against bonus shares issued pending allotment. However, in the FY 2024-25 the bonus is alloted 
on 3rd April, 2024.
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22 Borrowings - Non-Current

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at March 
31, 2024 

Secured:
-from Banks 53.44                   26.88                  

Total 53.44                   26.88                  

i) Secured loan from Banks and Others
Particulars

Term Loan for Vehicle

23 Lease Liabilities

Particulars

Non-current Current Non-current Current
At amortized cost
Lease Liability (Refer note 49) 2,647.85            254.74                 117.66                144.47                
Total 2,647.85            254.74                 117.66                144.47                

24 Provisions

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Partially funded) (Refer note 43) 0.00                    66.22                   8.89                     67.28                  
Provision for compensated absences 78.58                  18.63                   65.85                   17.74                  

Total 78.58                  84.85                   74.74                   85.02                  

25 Borrowings - Current

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at March 
31, 2024 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings - Term loans for vehicles (secured)
- from Banks 29.65                   13.43                  
- from others -                       74.31                  

Repayable on demand - from banks (secured):
Cash credit and packing credit 3,241.71             729.81                
Total 3,271.36             817.55                

Sanction Limit
Security details

Sanction Limit
Security details

Sanction Limit
Security details

FY 2024-25: 2,000 lakhs, FY 2023-24: 2,000 lakhs
a) First pari passu charge on entire current assets including stock and receivables (present & future)
along with "Bank II".
b) First charge on movable fixed assets of the company both present & future excluding vehicle &
other than movable fixed assets exclusively charged to  "Bank II".
c) Common collateral for Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies
Private Limited), Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech
Technologies Cleanrooms Private Limited) and Fabsafe Technologies Private Limited by way of
exlusive charge on unit no. 1, 2, 3 plot no. 190/191, GIDC, Umbergaon, Gujarat, 396171 and office
premises located ar 715, 716, 717 and 718 Janki Centre, Off Veera Desai Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai
in the name of Fabtech Turnkey Projects LLP 
d) Negative lien on the land at Khalapur, Raigad.
e) Personal guarantees of Mr. Aasif Khan, Mr. Hemant Anavkar and Mr. Aarif Khan; and
f) Corporate guarantees of Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited (Formerly known as
Fabtech Technologies International Limited) and Fabtech Turnkey Projects LLP (to the extend of value
of the property)

 Facility II: The Facility has been closed during FY 2023-24, hence there is no Outstanding balance as at the year end for Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech 
Technologies Private Limited) 

5202 ,13 hcraM  ta sA As at March 31, 2024

 Facility I: Outstanding Cash Credit facility of INR 380.56 lakhs and Packing Credit facility of Rs. 1,550 lakhs for Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech 
Technologies Private Limited) 

Facility IV: The New Facility has been taken during FY 2024-25, there is Outstanding cash credit facility of Rs.439.54 Lakhs as at the year end for Fabtech Technologies Limited 
(Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

The new facility has been taken during FY 2024-25 - 1000 Lakhs
a) Loan against Securities of 483.79 lakhs in Mutual Fund (Debt Fund) - HDFC Ultra Short Fund -
Regular (Growth) (Refer Note 12)

Effective Interest rate

Interest ranging between 8.00% 
to 10.95%

Particulars

5202 ,13 hcraM  ta sA

Repayment termsSecurity details

Secured by hypothecation of 
vehicles acquired under said 
loans.

Repayable in 36 or 60 monthly
equal instalments

As at March 31, 2024

Facility III: The New Facility has been taken during FY 2024-25, there is Outstanding cash credit facility of Rs.199.50 Lakhs and Packing credit facility of Rs.672.11 Lakhs as at the 
year end for Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

The new facility has been taken during FY 2024-25 - 1000 Lakhs
a) First pari passu charge on the entire present and future current assets of the company along with
the Bank I.
b) Personal guarantees of Mr. Aasif Khan, Mr. Hemant Anavkar and Mr. Aarif Khan; and
c)  Lien on Fixed Deposits (50% of Rs. 10.00 crs)
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26 Trade Payables

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at March 
31, 2024 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,606.17             1,175.79            
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5,830.46             4,553.78            
Total 7,436.63             5,729.57            

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule (Outstanding for Following periods from the due date of payment)

Particulars Less than 1 
Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More than 3 

Years  Total 

- MSME 1,424.47            163.00                4.06                     14.64                   1,606.17            
- Others 4,317.26            417.02                106.07                 990.11                5,830.46            
- Disputed dues - MSME -                     -                     -                       -                      -                     
- Disputed dues - Others -                     -                     -                       -                      -                     

Total 5,741.73            580.02                110.13                 1,004.75             7,436.63            

Particulars Less than 1 
Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More than 3 

Years  Total 

Undisputed trade payables
- Micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,106.85            11.94                  3.24                     53.76                   1,175.79            
- Others 3,908.70            187.39                337.07                 120.62                4,553.80            
- Disputed dues - MSME -                     -                     -                       -                      -                     
- Disputed dues - Others -                     -                     -                       -                      -                     

Total 5,015.55            199.34                340.32                 174.38                5,729.59            

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at March 
31, 2024 

              1,584.65              1,145.18 
                   21.52                   30.60 

 Nil  Nil 

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year  Nil                     8.50 
                   21.52                   30.60 
                   21.52                   30.60 

Refer note 47 for trade payables to related parties

27 Other current financial liabilities

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at March 
31, 2024 

Employee liabilities 10.65                   83.64                  
Payment to be made towards investment in subsidiary (Refer note 7) -                      22.69                  
Interest accrued but not due -                      0.70                    
Total 10.65                   107.04                

28 Other current liabilities

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at March 
31, 2024 

Advance from Customers 3,885.28             5,173.65            
Statutory due payable 51.02                   59.69                  
Total 3,936.30             5,233.33            

29 Current tax liabilities (net)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at March 
31, 2024 

Provision for Income Taxes [Net of Advance tax] 482.43                92.46                  
Total 482.43                 92.46                  

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year
b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year
c) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day

f)  The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid

e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

The information as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information available with the Company and relied upon by Auditors, is as follows:-
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30 Revenue from Operations

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Sale of products 22,661.38                    20,393.22                    
Sale of services

Installation, commissioning and Consulting services 560.00                         1,929.24                      
Other Operating Revenues

Export incentives 420.97                         180.13                         
Total 23,642.35                    22,502.59                    

Analysis of revenues by segments:
Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products.                      23,642.35                      22,502.59 

Revenue based on Geography

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

 Domestic 3,160.19                      2,991.81                      
 Export 

 Saudi Arabia 8,790.39                      6,914.79                      
 UAE 5,659.60                      -                               
 Kenya 1,289.27                      3,674.69                      
 Iraq 1,202.48                      2,642.42                      
 Algeria 889.00                         4,467.56                      
 Egypt 161.64                         348.55                         
 Rest of the world 2,489.78                      1,462.78                      

 Total                      23,642.35 22,502.59                    

Revenue based on timing of recognition
 Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products.                      23,642.35                      22,502.59 
 Total                      23,642.35                      22,502.59 

31 Other income

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Interest Income on
Interest income on Bank deposits 140.45                         111.88                         
Interest income on Security Deposit 11.14                           9.96                             
Other interest income 207.74                         65.56                           

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 269.80                         164.05                         
Net gain arising on financial assets designated as FVTPL 160.89                         26.67                           
Reversal of provision of doubtful debts and advances 213.63                         42.80                           
Reversal of provision for Interest payment to MSME 9.08                             27.58                           
Liabilities no longer required written back 7.97                             -                               
Reversal of Provision for Employee loan 1.08                             -                               
Profit on disposal of fixed asset (net) 0.31                             -                               
Interest income on Loan to employees 0.50                             1.71                             
Miscellaneous income 0.14                             1.98                             

Total 1,022.73                      452.18                         

32 Purchase of Stock-in-trade

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Purchase of Stock-in-trade 12,996.84                    12,018.34                    
Total 12,996.84                    12,018.34                    

33 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Stock in Trade (Including Goods in Transit) 1,639.27                      1,723.53                      

1,639.27                      1,723.53                      
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

-Stock in Trade (Including Goods in Transit) 1,599.17                      1,639.27                      
1,599.17                      1,639.27                      

Net decrease/ (increase) 40.09                           84.26                           
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34 Employee benefits expense

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Salaries, wages and bonus 2,272.13                      1,809.65                      
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 57.63                           50.00                           
Staff welfare expenses 60.19                           41.35                           
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 43) 24.09                           28.86                           
Leave Obligations (Refer note 43) 28.32                           17.36                           
Total 2,442.36                      1,947.22                      

35 Finance costs

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Interest expense on 
Borrowings 127.50                         162.61                         

Processing and committment charges 37.61                           12.80                           
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities 29.22                           11.09                           
Interest on delay in payment of taxes 0.85                             0.35                             
Total 195.18                         186.85                         

36 Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Depreciation (Refer note 5) 208.19                         199.77                         
Amortization (Refer note 6) 10.19                           5.88                             
Total 218.38                         205.65                         

37 Other expenses

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Business Promotion and Advertising 1,336.41                      1,484.17                      
Project erection and commissioning expenses 1,850.67                      1,473.19                      
Travelling and Conveyance expenses 696.48                         583.16                         
Freight and forwarding 785.34                         549.37                         
Legal and professional charges 385.14                         502.09                         
Bank Charges 93.32                           93.70                           
Rates and taxes 111.96                         87.43                           
Communication expenses 44.29                           39.10                           
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note 39) 67.85                           35.00                           
Repairs and maintenance 32.31                           34.51                           
Rent 33.28                           25.27                           
Insurance 27.00                           24.42                           
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note below) 9.14                             16.47                           
Power and fuel 18.77                           15.56                           
Donation (Other than CSR) 21.93                           12.12                           
Bad Debts written-off -                               7.47                             
Share of Loss in Investment in FABL International Technologies LLP 171.71                         8.09                             
Advance to Vendor Written Back 1.35                             -                               
Corporate Gurantee Expenses 42.75                           -                               
Premium on forward contracts 15.65                           21.21                           
Subscription Expenses 8.47                             6.27                             
Miscellaneous expenses 2.60                             12.88                           
Total Other expenses 5,756.42                      5,031.49                      

Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of taxes)

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Certification and tax consultancy 3.64                             10.87                           
Statutory audit 3.30                             3.30                             
Tax audit 1.20                             1.30                             
GST Audit 1.00                             1.00                             
Total 9.14                             16.47                           

38 Exceptional Items

Particulars  For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 

Profit on sales of Unlisted shares 2,197.80                      -                               
Total 2,197.80                      -                               
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39 Corporate Social Responsibility

Disclosures in relation to corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

(i) Amount spent during the year
- Various welfare for needy and poor people, poor child education and medical cause and conservation of 
natural resources

67.85                               35.00                               

Total 67.85                               35.00                               

(ii) Amount required to be spent by the Company as per Section 135 of the Act 59.32                               44.86                               

(iii) Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Balance shortfall / (excess) spent as at beginning of the year 7.85                                 (2.01)                                
Amount required to be spent during the year 59.32                               44.86                               
Amount spent during the year (60.00)                              (35.00)                              
Balance shortfall of the pervious year spent during the year (7.85)                                -                                   
Balance of shortfall/ (excess) as at the end of the year (0.68)                                7.85                                 

40 Earnings per share

The following table reflects profit and shares data used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

a) Profit after tax
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - for basic and diluted EPS 3,837.57                          2,622.15                          

Nos Nos
b) Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for basic and diluted 3,23,92,239                     3,22,72,013                     
c) Nominal value of ordinary shares (INR) 10.00                               10.00                               
d) Basic earnings per ordinary share (INR) 11.85                               8.13                                 
e) Diluted earnings per ordinary share (INR) 11.85                               8.13                                 

41 Contingent Liability

Contingencies:

The following are the description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable.

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt *
(The outflow, if any, shall be paid along with interest) 85.53                               85.53                               

b) Corporate guarantee given by the company in respect of working capital limits sanctioned by Axis Bank to:

i) Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech technologies Cleanrooms Private Limited) 1,000.00                          1,000.00                          

ii) Fabsafe Technologies Private Limted 600.00                             600.00                             

c) Performance guarantee given for execution of turnkey project contracts 1,570.67                          2,069.55                          

Total 3,256.20                          3,755.08                          

42 Segment Reporting

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The funds were utilised throughout the period on the activities
which are specified in Schedule VII of the Act. The utilisation is done by way of direct contribution towards aforesaid activities.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, segment information has been given in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and therefore, no separate 
disclosure on segment information is given in these standalone financial statements.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and assertions and monitors the
legal environment on an ongoing basis with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a
potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements if material. For potential losses that are considered
possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

* The company withheld a liability owed to M/s. Clean Coats Pvt. Ltd. ("vendor") due to unsatisfactory work quality, which resulted in a dispute. The vendor disputed
the withholding and filed a complaint with the MSME Facilitation Council, Thane. The Council issued an order on September 29, 2017, directing the company to pay
INR 32.03 lakhs along with other claims.

Subsequently, the company contested the order by filing a suit in the Bombay City Civil Court, Dindoshi, on February 9, 2018. Concurrently, the vendor approached the
Bombay High Court for enforcement of the MSME Facilitation Council's order. The Bombay High Court instructed the company to deposit INR 85.53 lakhs (including
interest) with the court. Subsequently deposited amount was withdrawn by the vendor.

However, following an Order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, Fabtech Technologies International Ltd. (Demerged Company) filed an Arbitration Application,
appointing legal representation. This application is anticipated to be listed and presents a favorable chance for the deposited funds to be refunded.

The management expresses confidence in resolving the matter in its favor and therefore, no provision has been recorded in the company's books.

Note:
The company has issued 2,94,47,490 bonus shares in the ratio of 10:1 during FY 2023-24 and allotment processed on April 03, 2024. Aforesaid, weighted average 
number of Ordinary Shares for basic and diluted EPS are adjusted for the bonus share in accordance with Ind AS 33.
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43 Employee Benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

ii) Defined Benefit Plan
Description of Plans

Gratuity & Pension

The disclosure in respect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below:

A. Balance Sheet

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Present value of benefit obligation 213.24                              177.88                              
Fair value of plan assets (147.02)                            (101.70)                            
(Asset) / Liability recognised 66.22                                76.17                                

B. Change in benefit obligation

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

As at the beginning of the year 177.88                              156.28                              
Current service cost 18.60                                17.72                                
Interest Cost/(Income) 12.08                                11.72                                
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions -                                    -                                    
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 7.62                                  4.33                                  
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience 11.10                                (0.61)                                
(Benefits paid by employer) -                                    (2.07)                                
(Benefits paid from the Fund) (14.04)                              (9.49)                                
As at the end of the year 213.24                              177.88                              

C. Change in fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

As at the beginning of the year 101.70                              7.67                                  
Interest Income 6.59                                  0.57                                  
Contributions by the Employer 51.98                                100.00                              
(Benefits Paid from the Fund) (14.04)                              (9.49)                                
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.78                                  2.95                                  
As at the end of the year 147.02                              101.70                              

D. Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Employee Benefits Expense:
Current service cost 18.60                                17.72                                
Net Interest cost/(income) 5.49                                  11.14                                
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 24.09                                28.86                                
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/(cost) (0.78)                                (2.95)                                
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions 7.62                                  4.33                                  
Experience gains/(losses) 11.10                                (0.61)                                
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 17.94                                0.77                                  

E. Assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Financial Assumptions:
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.78% 7.21%
Discount rate 6.78% 7.21%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality Rate: Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality 2012-14 
(Urban)

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality 2012-14 
(Urban)

Employee turnover For service 4 years and 
below 20.00% p.a. For 
service 5 years and 
above 2.00% p.a.

For service 4 years and 
below 20.00% p.a. For 
service 5 years and 
above 2.00% p.a.

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund and
Pension Fund, which is a defined contribution plan. The company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contribution that are not due to
be paid until the end of reporting period. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and Pension Fund for the year aggregated to:
INR 57.63 lakhs March 31, 2025
INR 50.00 lakhs March 31, 2024

Retirement Benefit Plans of the Company include Gratuity and Leave Encashment.

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lumpsum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of
service, subject to a payment ceiling of INR 20 lakhs. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. However, the completion of vesting period is not
applicable in the case where termination of employment is due to death or permanent disability. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuation on the reporting date.

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19
are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.
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F. Sensitivity

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions                               213.24 177.88                              
Change in assumption

Discount rate
Increase by 1% (16.97)                              (14.13)                              
Decrease by 1% 19.87                                16.55                                

Salary escalation rate
Increase by 1% 15.57                                12.99                                
Decrease by 1% (14.86)                              (13.31)                              

Employee Turnover
Increase by 1% 1.35                                  1.86                                  
Decrease by 1% (1.56)                                (2.11)                                

G. The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows:

Expected payment for the future years
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

 March 31, 2024
Within the next 12 months 36.62                                33.60                                
Between 1 and 2 years 7.15                                  5.89                                  
Between 2 and 3 years 7.61                                  6.40                                  
Between 3 and 4 years 16.28                                6.83                                  
Between 4 and 5 years 41.04                                14.20                                
Between 6 and 10 years 36.92                                57.66                                
11 year and thereafter 302.41                              271.27                              

H. Investment details of plan assets

I. Notes

J. Qualitative Disclosures

Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit plan
The entity has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The entity’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires 
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Particulars

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognised in the balance sheet. There
was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (partly funded). The entity’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund i.e. Life Insurance Corporation of India.The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of
Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Gratuity is payable as per entity's scheme as detailed in the report.
Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the period of occurrence under Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
All above reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation.
Salary escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised by the entity; they appear to be in line with the industry practice considering promotion and demand & 
supply of the employees.
Maturity Analysis of Benefit Payments is undiscounted cashflows considering future salary, attrition & death in respective year for members as mentioned above.
Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employment Benefit Obligation.
Weighted Average Duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation is the weighted average of cash flow timing, where weights are derived from the present value of each 
cash flow to the total present value.
Any benefit payment and contribution to plan assets is considered to occur end of the year to depict liability and fund movement in the disclosures.
Value of asset provided by the entity is not audited by us and the same is considered as unaudited fair value of plan asset as on the reporting date.
In absence of specific communication as regards contribution by the entity, Expected Contribution in the Next Year is considered as the sum of net liability/assets at 
the end of the current year and current service cost for next year, subject to maximum allowable contribution to the Plan Assets over the next year as per the Income 
Tax Rules.
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iii) Other Long Term Benefit Plan

The following table sets out the non funded status of the Privilege Leave benefits and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements.

A. Change in Present Value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 80.20                                83.73                                
Current service cost 16.81                                13.02                                
Interest Cost/(Income) 5.78                                  6.28                                  
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions-                                     -                                    
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions3 .10                                  1.86                                  
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 2.62                                  (7.20)                                
(Benefits paid by employer) (11.29)                              (17.50)                              
As at the end of the year 97.22                                80.20                                

B. Balance Sheet

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Present value of plan Unfunded Obligations 97.22                                80.20                                
Fair value of plan assets -                                    -                                    
(Asset) / Liability recognised 97.22                                80.20                                

C. Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Current service cost 16.81                                13.02                                
Interest cost/(income) 5.78                                  6.28                                  
Acturial loss/(gain) 5.72                                  (5.34)                                
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 28.32                                13.97                                

Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and entity is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the 
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the 
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end 
of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively 
balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this 
generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although 
probability of this is very low as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory guidelines which mitigate risk.
Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plans
During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

Para 147 (a)
A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962.
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D. Assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Demographical Assumptions:
Mortality Rate: Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality 2012-14 
(Urban)

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality 2012-14 
(Urban)

Attrition Rate: For service 4 years and 
below 20.00% p.a.
For service 5 years and 
above 2.00% p.a.

For service 4 years and 
below 20.00% p.a.
For service 5 years and 
above 2.00% p.a.

Retirement Age: 58 years 58 years
While in service Encashment Rate: 5.00% of the Leave 

balance (for the next 
year).

5.00% of the Leave 
balance (for the next 
year).

Financial Assumptions:
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

Discount rate

6.78%
(Indicative G.Sec

referenced on
 28-03-2025)

7.21%
(Indicative G.Sec 

referenced on
 28-03-2024)

E. Sensitivity

As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Delta Effect of +1.00% Change in Rate of Discounting (6.92)                                (6.09)                                
Delta Effect of -1.00% Change in Rate of Discounting 8.08                                  7.11                                  
Delta Effect of +1.00% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 8.06                                  7.13                                  
Delta Effect of -1.00% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (7.03)                                (6.21)                                
Delta Effect of +1.00% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.50                                  0.70                                  
Delta Effect of -1.00% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.56)                                (0.78)                                

F. Notes

44 Capital Management

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Total equity 15,753.96                         12,415.76                         
Net debt (Total borrowings including current maturities less cash & cash equivalents and Other bank balances) 983.03                              (3,696.91)                         
Total capital (Borrowings and Equity) 16,737.00                         8,718.86                           
Gearing ratio 6% -42%

Privilege Leave is payable as per entity's scheme as detailed in the report.
Actuarial Gains/ Losses are accounted for in the period of occurrence in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Salary escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised by the entity; they appear to be in line with the industry practice considering promotion and demand & 
supply of the employees.
During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
Any benefit payment and contribution to plan assets is considered to occur end of the year to depict liability and fund movement in the disclosures.

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the Company. The
Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and short term strategic investment and expansion
plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operations and long term and short term bank borrowings on need basis, if any. The Company
monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio i.e. net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company. Net debt
includes interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Particulars
Impact on defined benefit obligation

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period
and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the
sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used to calculate the liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.
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45 Financial Instruments

a) Category-wise classification of Financial instruments
The carrying value and fair values of financial instruments by class are as follows:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets measured at cost

Investment 824.76                            23.69                              
Loans 3,434.30                         487.27                            
Cash and cash equivalents 382.52                            2,825.88                         
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 1,959.25                         1,715.46                         
Trade receivables 12,326.24                       9,407.99                         
Other financial assets 3,960.18                         2,716.01                         

22,887.24                       17,176.29                       

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities measured at cost

Lease Liabilities 2,902.59                         262.13                            
Borrowings 3,324.80                         844.44                            
Trade payables 7,436.63                         5,729.57                         
Other Financial Liability 10.65                              107.04                            

13,674.67                       6,943.17                         

b) Fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at March 31, 2025
Financial Assets

Investments 642.56                            -                                  1,293.65                         
Security Deposits -                                  -                                  255.58                            

Financial Liabilities
Lease Liability -                                  -                                  2,902.59                         

As at March 31, 2024
Financial Assets

Investments 2,099.99                         -                                  1,465.46                         
Security Deposits -                                  -                                  162.81                            

Financial Liabilities
Lease Liability -                                  -                                  262.13                            

b) Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs -
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observables for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This level of hierarchy includes Company’s derivative contracts.

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 & 3 – Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies.

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The categories used are as follows:
a) Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market -
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of
investment in quoted equity shares.

c) Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data -
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole
or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor they are based on
available market data.

For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as at Balance Sheet date, the classification of fair value calculations by category is summarized below:

Fair value through profit or loss

i) The Company has assessed that cash and bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

ii) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially
all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Comp any could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective 
dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

iii) There have been no transfers between Level 1, level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Particulars
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46 Financial Risk Management

I

a)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Monetary Liabilities
US Dollar

Value in Foreign Currency 50.64                              69.51                              
Value in INR 4,328.78                         5,793.23                         

Euro
Value in Foreign Currency 5.30                                4.72                                

Value in INR 490.00                            425.56                            
SAR

Value in Foreign Currency 21.98                              13.95                              
Value in INR 501.23                            310.00                            

EGP
Value in Foreign Currency 6.18                                0.85                                

Value in INR 10.45                              1.50                                
BDT

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  2.01                                
Value in INR -                                  1.51                                

NGN
Value in Foreign Currency -                                  5.69                                

Value in INR -                                  0.34                                
DZD

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  2.96                                
Value in INR -                                  1.84                                

AED
Value in Foreign Currency -                                  -                                  

Value in INR -                                  -                                  
KES

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  -                                  
Value in INR -                                  -                                  

Monetary Assets
US Dollar

Value in Foreign Currency 106.55                            110.16                            
Value in INR 9,105.35                         9,180.90                         

Euro
Value in Foreign Currency 3.83                                1.78                                

Value in INR 354.09                            159.91                            
AED

Value in Foreign Currency 0.74                                0.15                                
Value in INR 17.33                              3.29                                

SAR
Value in Foreign Currency 2.73                                7.91                                

Value in INR 62.16                              175.77                            
EGP

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  -                                  
Value in INR -                                  -                                  

DZD
Value in Foreign Currency -                                  73.02                              

Value in INR -                                  45.27                              

Market risk - Foreign currency exchange rate risk: The Company enter into sale and purchase transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Management monitors the movement in foreign currency and the Company’s exposure in each of the foreign currency. Based on the analysis and study of movement in
foreign currency, the Company takes remidial measures to hedge foreign currency risk through measures like forward currency contracts etc.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. The risk management framework aims to:

(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.
(ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements
cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

i) The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:

A 10% appreciation/depreciation of the foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company would result in an decrease/ increase (net) in the Company’s net profit before
tax by approximately:
INR 420.85 lakhs - March 31, 2025
INR 303.12 lakhs - March 31, 2024
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ii) Forward Exchange Contracts:

Currency As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

USD
- No. of Contracts 1.00                                1.00                                
- Amount in Foreign Currency 10.00                              10.00                              

iii) Transaction in Foreign Currency

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Expenditure in Foreign Currencies 2,280.08                         2,222.14                         

Earnings in Foreign Currencies
FOB Value of Export Sales 19,896.93                       17,276.93                       
Installation & commissioning services 2.51                                1,838.31                         

Value of Imports on CIF Basis 1,069.06                         831.07                            

b)

II Credit risk:

II Liquidity risk:

Undiscounted amount 
payable

within 1 year
As at March 31, 2025
Non-derivative liabilities

Borrowings 3,324.80                         3,271.36                         3,324.80                         
Trade payables 7,436.63                         7,436.63                         7,436.63                         
Other current liabilities 3,946.95                         3,946.95                         3,946.95                         
Provisions 163.44                            84.85                              163.44                            

As at March 31, 2024
Non-derivative liabilities

Borrowings 844.44                            817.55                            844.44                            
Trade payables 5,729.57                         5,729.57                         5,729.57                         
Other current liabilities 5,340.37                         5,340.37                         5,340.37                         
Provisions 159.76                            85.02                              159.76                            

Particulars Carrying Amount Total

The credit risk on bank balances and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are
available for use as per requirements. The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed
deposits and liquid mutual funds, which carry no or low market risk. The Company’s liquidity position remains strong at:
INR 2,984.33 lakhs as at March 31, 2025
INR 6,641.33 lakhs as at March 31, 2024
comprising of cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and current investments.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the company’s financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance
Sheet date.

Market risk - Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.
The Company’s policy is to maintain a balance of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings and the proportion of fixed and floating rate debt is determined by current market interest rates.
The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in Indian Rupees and US dollars with mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. These exposures are reviewed by appropriate
levels of management at regular interval.

The Company has outstanding borrowings of INR 3,324.79 lakhs and INR 844.44 lakhs at the end of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk
of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of Cash & bank balances, trade
receivables, finance receivables and loans and advances. Company regularly reviews the credit limits of the customers and takes action to reduce the risk. Further diverse and large customer
bases also reduces the risk. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on quarterly basis.
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Nature of Transaction Name of the Related Party  For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Reimbursement of expenses (net) Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms Limited 1.22                                  0.53                                  
Fabsafe Technologies Private Limited 18.45                                17.57                                
FTS Cleanroom Systems LLC 126.90                              -                                    
FABL International Technologies LLP 0.69                                  -                                    
Mrs.Aparna Sharma 0.07                                  -                                    
Mr. Shyam Khante 0.22                                  -                                    
Mr. Aatif Khan (1.11)                                 

Interest Income Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited 4.74                                  62.04                                
FT Institutions Private Limited 32.50                                3.52                                  
FABL International Technologies LLP 38.79                                -                                    
Fabtech Technologies LLC,UAE 125.40                              -                                    
Mark Maker Engineering Pvt Ltd 2.25                                  -                                    

Trademark Charges Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited 23.22                                22.36                                

III Balances as on year end:

Nature of Transaction Name of the Related Party  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Trade receivables Fabtech Turnkey Projects LLP 268.84                              268.84                              
Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited 1,254.48                           2,397.37                           
FTS Cleanrooms System LLC 1,315.90                           -                                    

Other receivables (Reimbursement of expenses) FABL International Technologies LLP 33.83                                33.83                                

Trade payables Altair Partition Systems LLP 11.60                                -                                    
Fabtech Turnkey Projects LLP 8.64                                  8.64                                  
Advantek Air Systems Private Limited -                                    6.63                                  
Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms Limited 554.66                              535.87                              
Mrs. Naseem Khan 0.40                                  0.40                                  
Fabsafe Technologies Private Limited 133.64                              27.68                                
Pacifab Technologies LLP 30.28                                14.10                                
Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited 25.08                                24.14                                

Payable to Directors Mrs. Naseem Khan -                                    0.14                                  
Mr. Amjad Arbani -                                    0.40                                  

Advances against supplies FABL International Technologies LLP 563.61                              571.25                              
Fabsafe Technologies Private Limited -                                    -                                    
Advantek Air Systems Private Limited 33.67                                -                                    
Altair Partition Systems LLP -                                    10.89                                
Pacifab Technologies LLP -                                    -                                    
Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms Limited -                                    0.88                                  
TSA Process Equipments Private Limited -                                    2.10                                  
Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited 9.75                                  -                                    
Mr. Aatif Khan 1.11                                  
Mr. Aamer Aasif Khan 2.47                                  

Security deposit Fabtech Turnkey Projects LLP 91.44                                97.80                                

Loans Fabtech Technologies International Private Limited -                                    179.25                              
FT Institutions Private Limited 455.88                              161.62                              
Fabl International Technologies LLP 660.10                              -                                    
Fabtech Technologies LLC, UAE 1,963.61                           -                                    
Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited 102.25                              -                                    

Investment FABL International Technologies LLP 1,293.65                           1,473.44                           
FT Institutions Private Limited 1.00                                  1.00                                  
Fillpac Solutions Private Limited 0.10                                  0.10                                  
Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited 799.99                              
Fabtech Technologies LLC, UAE 23.77                                

Capital Commitment Fabtech Technologies LLC, UAE -                                    22.69                                

Notes:
i. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been provided for as doubtful debts. Also, no amounts have been written off or written back during the year.
ii. Also refer note no. 26 for borrowings guaranteed by directors.
iii. Transactions with related parties are at arm's length and in the ordinary courses of business
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Amount
112.89                      

Additions 298.77                      
(136.77)                     

Adjustments on account of Lease Modification -                            
Disposals -                            

274.89                      
Additions 2,897.30                   

(173.70)                     
Adjustments on account of Lease Modification -                            
Disposals -                            

2,998.49                   

Balance as at March 31, 2024

(B) Lease liabilities

Depreciation on Right of Use (ROU) assets

Balance as at March 31, 2025

Balance as at April 01, 2023

Depreciation on Right of Use (ROU) assets

Information about leases for which the group is a lessee are presented below:

A) Right of use assets

Particulars
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50

51

52

53

54 Other disclosure requirements as per Schedule III

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the
nature of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and
advances in the nature of loans

Related Parties                                                         3,181.84 92.65%

(x)

(xi)

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Company has used the borrowings from the banks only for its intended purpose during the financial year.

The Company did not have any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
during the current and previous financial year.

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or
other lender in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

The Company doesn’t have any co-owned properties or the properties (including properties for which the lease agreement executed and disclosed as 'Right-
of-Use Assets' in standalone financial information) title deed of which are held by the others.

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and granted Loans to the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

Payable terms

Receivable on demand

The balances in respect of trade receivables and payables and loans and advances, as appearing in the books of accounts are subject to confirmations from the
respective parties and are pending reconciliations / adjustments arising there from, if any. The same is not expected to have any material impact on the financials
statements.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

As per the contractual terms with customers, company provide warranty to the customer for 18 months from the date of sale or 12 month from the date of
installation whichever is earlier. These warranties are backed by the vendor's warranty on the product. No Provision for Warranty has been created since the
vendor of the company fully covers the product warranty cost pertaining to the material supplied by them for potential future warranty claims.

The investment in the equity shares of TSA Process Equipment Pvt. Ltd. ("TSA") till February 06, 2024 was classified as an investment in associate in accordance
with Ind AS 27. The said investment ceases to be an investment in associate from February 06, 2024 as a company decided to dispose off its investment in TSA to
Thermax Limited vide Share Purchase and Share Subscription Agreement dated February 06, 2024. Accordingly, as per Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, from the cessation date the investment in TSA has been valued at lower of carrying amount or fair value (net of cost).

Events after the Reporting period

The Company’s Board of Directors approved the sale of 51% equity interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary i.e FABL International Technologies LLP. The
reconstitution deed reflecting this sale was executed after the reporting date but prior to the approval of these standalone financial statements.

Since the event occurred after the reporting period and does not provide evidence of conditions existing at the reporting date, it is classified as a non-adjusting
event under Ind AS 10 – Events after the Reporting Period. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2025, in respect of this event.

If the sale of the 51% stake had been recognized as an adjusting event in the current reporting period, it would have resulted in a gain estimated to INR 90.52
Lakhs from the derecognition of the subsidiary in the standalone financial statements.
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Consolidated Auditor’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Fabtech Technologies 
Limited
(Formerly Fabtech Technologies Private 
Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited accompanying Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Fabtech Technologies 
Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech 
Technologies Private Limited) (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and 
its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as “the 
Group”) which includes Group’s share of profit 
in its associates as listed in Annexure A, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheet 
as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 
statement of cash flows and consolidated 
statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended on that date, and notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, including 
significant material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Consolidated Financial 
Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to 
us and based on the consideration of the 
reports of the other auditors on separate 
financial statements of subsidiaries and 
associates referred to in Other Matter section 
below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under 
section 133 of the Act and other accounting  
principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, 
as at March 31, 2025, and their consolidated 
profit, their consolidated total comprehensive 
income, their consolidated cash flows and

their consolidated changes in equity for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those SAs are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of 
our report. 

We are independent of the Group, it’s 
associates in accordance with the code of 
ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence obtained by us and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in 
terms of their reports referred to in paragraphs 
of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in 
our professional judgment and were of most 
significance in our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the current financial 
year. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters Response to Key Audit Matters & Conclusion

Recoverability and valuation of allowance for 
impairment of Overdue Trade Receivables
•	 Trade receivables, including retention money 

with customers forms a significant part of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Customer 
contracts typically involve time consuming and 
complex conditions around closure of contracts, 
including technical acceptances. This generally 
leads to longer and significant time for realization 
of receivables. 

•	 As described in Note no. 13(a) to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, the Company has old 
outstanding trade receivables of ₹ 3,452.62 
Lakhs for more than 365 days (‘overdue  trade 
receivables’) as on March 31, 2025. The Company 
recognizes loss allowance for trade receivables 
at the expected credit loss (‘ECL’) as per the 
principles enunciated under Ind AS 109, Financial 
Instruments (‘Ind AS 109’). Assessment of the 
recoverability of trade receivables with the related 
ECL is inherently subjective and requires significant 
management judgement which includes 
repayment history and financial position of entities 
from whom these balances are recoverable, terms 
of underlying arrangements, overdue balances, 
market conditions etc. Considering the materiality 
of the amounts involved and significant degree 
of judgement and subjectivity involved in the 
estimates and assumptions used in determining 
the expected credit loss, we have considered this 
matter as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included but were not limited to the
following:
•	 Obtained an understanding of the process adopted by 

the Company in estimating expected credit loss including 
the key inputs and assumptions. Since assumptions and 
parameters are based on historical data and available 
forward looking information with respect to Trade 
Receivables, we assessed whether historical experience 
and other information was representative of current 
circumstances and are relevant; 

•	 Assessed and tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls over the process 
of estimating recoverability and the allowance for 
impairment on trade receivables in accordance with Ind 
AS 109; 

•	 Understanding the key inputs used in the provisioning 
model by the Company such as repayment history, terms 
of underlying arrangements, overdue balances, market 
conditions etc. 

•	 Tested the methodology applied in the credit loss 
provision calculation by comparing it to the requirements 
of Ind AS 109, and appropriateness and reasonableness of 
the assumptions related to credit loss rate including the 
historical bad-debts applied in their assessment of the 
receivables allowance 

Information Other than the Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
(‘other information’)
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors 
are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information 
included in the Holding Company’s annual 
report, but does not include the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and auditor’s report 
thereon.
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information, compare with the 
financial statements of subsidiaries including 
foreign subsidiaries and associate audited by 
other auditors, to the extent it relates to these 
entities and, in doing so, place reliance on 
the work of the other auditors and consider 
whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. Other information so far as it

 relates to the subsidiaries and associates, 
is traced from their financial statements 
audited by the other auditors. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

Responsibility of Management’s and 
those charged with governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors 
are responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view 
of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, consolidated 
cash flows and consolidated changes in 
equity of the Group and including associates 
in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS 
specified under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 
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The respective Board of Directors/Designated 
Partners of the companies/LLP’s included in 
the Group and of its associate are responsible 
for maintenance of adequate accounting  
records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Group and of its associate and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements by the Directors of the Holding 
Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, the respective Management and 
Board of Directors/Designated Partners of the 
companies/LLP’s included in the Group and of 
its associate are responsible for assessing the 
ability of the respective entities to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Board of Directors/Designated Partners 
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.
Those respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its 
associates are also responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the Group 
and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the Consolidated 
Financial Statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Consolidated Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the holding has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the 
Management and Board of Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of 
the Management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related 
to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the 
Group and its associates to continue as 
going concern. If we conclude that
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a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report.  
However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group and its associates to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 
and content of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group and its 
associates to express an opinion on 
the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the 
audit of the Financial Statements of such 
entities or business activities included in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
which we are the independent auditors. 
For the other entity included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, which 
have been audited by other auditors, such 
other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of 
the audits carried out by them. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with 
governance of the Holding Company and such 
other entities included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships 

and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those 
charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements 
and other financial information of two 
Foreign Subsidiaries which are audited 
with management report whose financial 
statements reflects total assets of Rs.10,182.84 
lakhs as on March 31,2025, total revenue of 
Rs.13,888.46 Lakhs for the year ended on 
that date, as considered in the Consolidated 
Financial statements. The Consolidated 
Financial Statements also include the 
Associate’s share of net profit of Rs. 32.22 
lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025, as 
considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, in respect of one associate 
whose financial statements have not been 
audited by us. The financial statements in 
respect of one associate have been audited 
by other auditors and Foreign Subsidiaries 
Auditors whose management reports have 
been furnished to us by the Management 
duly signed by the respective auditor of 
these two subsidiaries and our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements, in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries 
and associate, and our report in terms of 
subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so 
far as it relates to the aforesaid associate is 
based solely on the reports of the other auditor 
and based on management report in respect 
of the aforesaid two foreign subsidiaries.
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We hereby want to state that the erstwhile 
associate company viz TSA Process 
Equipments Private Limited (“TSA”) of Holding 
company, whose share of net worth in the said 
associate company as on February 06, 2024 
was Rs. 1,149.69 lakhs and holding company 
share of profit (33.33%) for the period ended 
February 06, 2024 was Rs. 138.14 Lakhs as 
considered in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the FY 2023-24. Hence, the said 
investment had ceased to be an investment 
in associate from February 06, 2024 as the 
group decided to dispose off its investment in 
TSA to Thermax Limited vide Share Purchase 
and Share Subscription Agreement dated 
February 06, 2024. The Balance Investment in 
TSA Process Equipments Private Limited had 
Classified as Held for Sale in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements as on March 31, 2024. 
Hence, the share of profit is not included in 
the Consolidated Financial statements for 
the financial year 2024-25 refer Note no 20 
and Note No 58 of Consolidated Financial 
Statements. Further, we want to inform that 
out of the total investment classified as held 
for sale (i.e 1,149.29 Lakhs) has been sold to 
the extent of 51% of investment classified as 
held for sale during the FY 2024-25 and the 
balance investment to the extent of 49% is 
classified as held for sale as mentioned in 
Note 20 and 58 of the consolidated financial 
statements.

The financial statements which include 
Statements of assets and liabilities as on 
March 31, 2025 and Statement of Profit or Loss 
for the year ended on that date in respect 

of one Subsidiary which is a Limited Liability 
Partnership which is audited by us, prepared 
solely for the purpose of consolidation by the 
management of the said subsidiary.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements above and our report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the management 
certified accounts and the reports of the other 
auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requi rements 

1.	 As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 
3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of section 
143(11) of the Act based on the consideration 
of the Order reports issued till date by us 
and by the respective other auditors as 
mentioned in Other Matter paragraphs 
above, of companies included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2025 and covered 
under the Act, we report that following are 
the unfavourable remarks or qualification 
or adverse remarks reported by us and by 
the respective other auditors in the Order 
reports of the companies included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2025 for which such 
Order reports have been issued till date 
and made available to us:

Name CIN/LLPIN Nature of 
Relationship

Clause number of CARO report which is
unfavourable or qualified or Adverse 

disclosures.

Fabtech Technologies 
Limited (Formerly 
Known as Fabtech 
Technologies Private 
Limited)

U74999MH2018PLC316357 Holding 
Company

Clause (ii b)

FT Institutions Private 
Limited (Formerly Known 
as FABL Containment 
Process Solutions Private 
Limited)

U29309MH2019PTC330077 Subsidiary 
Company 

Clause (vii a), (ix a) and (xvii)
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FABL International 
Technologies LLP 

AAH-3662 Subsidiary LLP Other Matters- Statutory Dues Maharastra 
Labour Welfare Fund Dues Unpaid and TDS 
Dues Amounting to Rs. 50,651 are unpaid 
and Delay in Payment of Profession Tax 
Dues of Rs. 3200 for more than 180 days.

Fabtech Technologies 
LLC

NA Foreign 
Subsidiary (UAE)

Not Applicable

FTS Cleanrooms 
Systems LLC

NA Foreign 
Subsidiary (UAE)

Not Applicable

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the 
Act, based on our audit and on the 
consideration of management certified 
accounts and the reports of the other 
auditors on the financial statements of the 
subsidiaries including foreign Subsidiaries, 
associate referred to in the Other Matters 
section above we report, to the extent 
applicable that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit 
of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements

b. In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law relating to preparation 
of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements have been kept by the Group, 
its associate including relevant records so 
far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the reports of the other 
auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows and the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the relevant books 
of account maintained for the purpose of 
preparation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements comply with the Ind 
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors/
Designated Partners of the Holding 
Company and the reports of associate 
company covered under the Act, none 
of the directors of the Group companies, 
One Subsidiary company and one 
associate company incorporated in India 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting in relation to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Holding Company, please refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B,” which 
is based on the auditors’ reports of the 
Holding Company and one associate 
company incorporated in India. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
internal financial controls with reference 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of these entities. It is further stated that the 
reporting on internal financial controls is 
not applicable to one domestic subsidiary 
which is a Limited Liability Partnership, 
another domestic subsidiary which is a 
private limited company incorporated in 
India, and two foreign subsidiaries; hence, 
our report does not include any comment 
on internal financial controls in respect of 
these subsidiaries.

g. With respect to the matters required 
to be included in the Auditor’s Report 
under Section 197(16) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, as amended, in our opinion 
and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, 
and based on the auditor’s report of the 
associate company incorporated in India, 
the remuneration paid by the Holding 
Company and such associate company 
to their respective directors during the 
year is in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 197 of the Act. We further state 
that Section 197 is not applicable to one 
of the subsidiary companies which is a 
private limited company incorporated 
in India, one domestic subsidiary which 
is a Limited Liability Partnership and two 
foreign subsidiaries; accordingly, the 
provisions of Section 197 do not apply to 
these entities.
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h. 	With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as 
amended in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:
i. The Consolidated Financial Statements 

disclose the impact of pending 
litigations on the consolidated financial 
position of the Group, as detailed in 
Note 42 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements; 

ii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies, and its associate 
company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses as at 
March 31, 2025;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Group and its associate 
company, during the year ended 
March 31,2025. 

iv. a.	   The respective Managements 
of the Holding Company and its 
one subsidiary company and one 
associate company, incorporated 
in India, whose financial statements 
have been audited  under the Act, 
have represented to us  and to the 
other auditors of associate company, 
that to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no funds ( which are material 
individually or in aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or securities 
premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Holding Company or 
any of its subsidiary, associate to or in 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), 
with the  understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Holding Company, or any 
such subsidiary company, associate 
company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) 
or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like on behalf the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; Refer note no 60 
(iv) of the financial statements. 

b.	   The respective managements 
of the Holding Company and its 
one subsidiary company and one 
associate company, incorporated 
in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, 
have represented to us and the other 
auditors of associate company that 
to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received 
by the Holding Company or any of 
its subsidiaries, associate from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), 
with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Holding Company, or any 
such subsidiary company, shall, 
whether directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or 
provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; Refer note no 60 (iv) 
of the financial statements and 

c.	  	 Based on such 
audit procedures performed by 
us, as considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our or other 
auditors’ notice that has caused us 
for the other auditors to believe that 
the management representations 
under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above 
contain any material misstatement. 
 

v. The Special dividend declared and 
paid by the Holding Company and 
however no dividend was declared 
bv its one subsidiary, one associate 
which are companies incorporated 
in India, whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, 
where applicable, during the year is in 
accordance with section 123 of the Act, 
as applicable.
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For Ajmera & Ajmera
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 018796C)

Sourabh Ajmera
(Partner)
(Membership No. 166931)
UDIN: 25166931BMNPUY8229 
Date: August 02, 2025	
Place: Mumbai

vi) Based on our examination which 
included test checks for the Parent, its 
one subsidiary company incorporated 
in India, and consideration of reports 
issued by other auditors with regards to 
the associate company incorporated 
in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, 
except for the instances mentioned  
below, the Parent Company, its one 
subsidiary company, associate 
company incorporated in India have 
used accounting software systems for 
maintaining their respective books of  
account for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, which have a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility 
and the same has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the accounting software 
systems except for the third party 
service providers the Audit Trial is 
not maintained and except other 
subsidiaries as mentioned below:

In respect of Foreign Subsidiaries:

We hereby want to state that as the two 
subsidiaries are located and incorporated 
outside India and hence the Provisions of 
the Rule 11(g) are not applicable to the 
said two subsidiaries.

In respect of Limited Liability Partnership:

We further hereby want to state that as 
one of the subsidiary is the Limited Liability 
Partnership and hence the Provisions of 
the rule 11(g) are not applicable.

In case of Associate company:

We hereby inform that we are relying on 
the report of other auditor report for the 
having used accounting software system 
for maintaining their respective books 
of  account for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, which have a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
the same has operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions recorded 
in the accounting software systems 
audit trail is maintained and records are 
preserved for retention.

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 108



Annexure ‘A’ referred to in Paragraph 1 of the 
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to 
the members of Fabtech Technologies Limited 
(Formerly Known as Fabtech Technologies 
Private Limited) on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025. 

List of Entities included in the statement

Name of the Holding Company
Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly 
Known as Fabtech Technologies Private 
Limited)

Name of Subsidiaries
a)FABL International Technologies LLP, India
b)FT Institutions Private Limited, India (Formerly 
FABL Containment Process Solutions Private 
Limited).
c)Fabtech Technologies LLC, UAE 
(Incorporated as on 26th December 2023)
d)FTS Cleanrooms Systems LLC, UAE 
(Incorporated as on 9th February 2024) 
(Subsidiary of Fabtech Technologies LLC)

Name of Associate
Mark Maker Engineering Private Limited 
(Associate since 29th December 2024)

For Ajmera & Ajmera
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 018796C)

Sourabh Ajmera
(Partner)
(Membership No. 166931)
UDIN: 25166931BMNPUY8229 
Date: August 02, 2025	
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure “B” to the Independent 
Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Fabtech 
Technologies Limited (Formerly Known 
as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited) 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report 
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the “Act”

In conjunction with our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly 
Known as Fabtech Technologies Private 
Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Holding Company”) as of and for the year 
ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Holding Company, as of that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company, its one subsidiary 
company and associate company which 
are companies incorporated in India, are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements based 
on the internal control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements criteria 
established by the respective Companies 
considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). 
These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Holding Company, its one subsidiary and 
associate company which are companies 
incorporated in India, based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing (“SA”) prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated financial statements and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements 
included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.   
We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
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the other auditor of the associate company, 
which is company incorporated in India, in 
terms of their reports referred to in Other 
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Holding Company, and one 
associate company, which are companies 
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
with Reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements

A company’s internal financial control 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements includes 
those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit the preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; 
and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls with Reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that 
degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorates.

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us 
and based on the consideration of the reports 
of other auditors referred to in the Other Matter 
paragraph below, the Holding Company one 
subsidiary, its one associate company, which 
are companies incorporated in India, have, 
in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and such 
internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, 
based on the criteria for internal control 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements established by the respective 
companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) 
of the Act on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements insofar as it relates to 
one associate company, which is company 
incorporated in India, is based solely on the 
corresponding report of the auditor of such 
company incorporated in India. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of the above matter.
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For Ajmera & Ajmera
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 018796C)

Sourabh Ajmera
(Partner)
(Membership No. 166931)
UDIN: 25166931BMNPUY8229 
Date: August 02, 2025	
Place: Mumbai

Also, Further our aforesaid report under 
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements in so 
far as it relates two Subsidiaries which is 
located and incorporated outside India and 

our opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Group is not applicable 
to the Entities Incorporated outside India. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the 
above matters. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

setoN sralucitraP  For the Year ended
 March 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended
 March 31, 2024 

Income
Revenue from Operations 31 32,666.85 36.316,22                                                 

63.72923emocni rehtO 18.644                                                           
12.495,33emocni latoT 44.060,32                                                

Expenses
45.9133demusnoc lairetam war fo tsoC 35.04                                                               

Purchase of Stock-in-trade 34 21,200.10 17.901,21                                                 
53edart-ni-kcots fo seirotnevni ni segnahC (3,033.70) 91.1                                                          

56.334,363esnepxe stifeneb eeyolpmE 10.879,1                                                     
95.90273stsoc ecnaniF 14.091                                                           
87.06283esnepxe noitazitroma dna noitaicerpeD 11.802                                                           
79.772,793sesnepxe rehtO 06.390,5                                                     
39.763,92sesnepxe latoT 65.126,91                                                

82.622,4xat dna smeti lanoitpecxe ,ytitne etaicossa ni )ssol( / stiforp fo erahS erofeb )ssol( /tiforP 88.834,3                                                      

53 32.22 41.831                                                             

05.852,4xat dna smeti lanoitpecxe erofeb )ssol( /tiforP 10.775,3                                                    

Exceptional items 40 1,784.86                         -                                  

6,043.36                        3,577.01                        

Tax expense
51.364,101xat tnerruC 00.698                                                        
 )51.1(01raey roirp ot gnitaler xat rof noisivorp trohS / )ssecxE( -                                                                  
 )39.36(01 xat derrefeD  )27.04(                                                          

70.893,1xat latoT 82.558                                                       

4,645.29 47.127,2                                                    

Other comprehensive income

44 (16.66) 42.1                                                              
10 (4.07) 15.0                                                                

Total other comprehensive income (a-b) (12.59) 37.0                                                              

4,632.70 74.227,2                                                    

a) Owners of the company 4,645.32                         2,721.74                        
b) Non-controlling interest (0.02)                               (0.00)                               

a) Owners of the company (12.59)                             0.73                               
b) Non-controlling interest 0.00                                 0.00                               

a) Owners of the company 4,632.73                         2,722.47                        
b) Non-controlling interest (0.02)                               (0.00)                               

Earnings per share
43.4114)RNI( erahs rep )ssoL( /gninraE cisaB                                 8.43                                 
43.4114)RNI( erahs rep )ssoL( /gninraE detuliD                                 8.43                                 

16 - 1stnemetatS laicnaniF eht fo trap gnimrof setoN

As per our report of even date
For Ajmera And Ajmera For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

753613CLP8102HM99947U :NICC697810 :.oN noitartsigeR mriF

Sourabh Ajmera Hemant Mohan Anavkar Amjad Adam Arbani
rotceriDrotceriDrentraP

91081720 :NID67705100 :NID139661 :oN pihsrebmeM
UDIN: 25166931BMNPUY8229
Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Kalpesh Chauhan Neetu Sunil Buchasia

 Membership No: ACS 
61496 

Ashwani Singh

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2nd August, 2025

Fabtech Technologies Limited

for the year)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies

1. OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP

Fabtech Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited) 
(“FTL or the Company”) is a public limited company having Corporate Identity Number 
U74999MH2018PLC316357. The Company along with it’s subsidiaries and associates is engaged 
in providing building pharmaceutical, biotech and healthcare capabilities for wide range of 
customers by offering comprehensive start to finish turnkey solutions, which includes supplying 
pharmaceutical machineries / equipment, in house designing engineering, procurement, 
installation, validation and to undertake other activities required in various projects including 
standalone equipment supply and installation.
The Company is incorporated and domiciled under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable 
in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 715, Janki Centre, off. Veera Desai Road, 
Andheri West, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400053.
The Company has converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company, pursuant 
to a special resolution in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on April 03, 
2024 and consequently the name of the Company has changed to Fabtech Technologies Limited 
pursuant to a fresh Certificate of Incorporation by the Registrar of Companies on July 24, 2024.
FTL together with its subsidiaries is herein after referred to as the “Group”.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

2.1 Basis for preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis as per the 
Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Rule 4 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

The Group has adopted Ind AS from April 01, 2023 with effective transition date of April 01, 2022 
and accordingly, these financial statements together with the comparative reporting period have 
been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles as laid down in 
Ind AS, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with relevant rules 
issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

The preparation of these financial information in conformity with Ind AS requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in 
the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree 
of judgment or complexity, or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to these 
financial statements are as disclosed in these financial statements.
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain 
financial assets and liabilities (including investments), defined benefit plans, plan assets and 
share-based payments that have been measured at fair value as prescribed by Ind AS.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the group’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Act and Ind AS 1, Presentation of 
Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting 
policies are applied consistently to all the financial years presented in the financial statements. 

2.2 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comply in all material aspects with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) 
read along with companies (Indian Accounting standard) Rules, 2015 as amended and other 
relevant provisions of the Act.
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2.3 Principles of Consolidation

(a)	 The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-
line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash 
flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.
(b)	 Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such 
as Inventory and Property, Plant and Equipment, are eliminated in full.
(c)	 In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate 
prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of 
the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the Foreign Currency 
Translation Reserve (FCTR).
(d)	 The audited/unaudited financial statements of foreign subsidiaries/joint ventures/
associates have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principle 
of its Country of Incorporation or Ind AS or IFRS.
(e)	 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting 
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
(f)	 The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminated) 
against the parent’s portion of equity in each subsidiary.
(g)	 The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and 
the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as on the date of disposal is recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss being the profit or loss on disposal of investment in 
subsidiary.
(h)	 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures has been accounted under the Equity Method 
as per Ind AS 28 – Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Investments in joint operations are 
accounted using the Proportionate Consolidation Method as per Ind AS 111 – Joint Arrangements.
(i)	 The Group accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates 
and joint ventures, after eliminating unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions 
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures.
(j)	 Non-Controlling Interest’s share of profit/loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is 
identified and adjusted against the income of the Group in order to arrive at the net income 
attributable to shareholders of the group.
(k)	 Non-Controlling Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and 
presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
(l)	 The financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates or joint venture entity used for 
consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting period as that of the Company i.e., 31st March, 
2025.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied by the group in the preparation of its financial 
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the 
periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

A) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the group operates. The financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals, except 
when otherwise indicated.

B) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions.
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The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by 
definition, may differ from the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in 
applying the group’s accounting policies.

These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities 
as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised and future periods affected. 

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant 
notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the 
consolidated financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

•	 Estimation of defined benefit obligation – Note 44
•	 Impairment of trade receivables – Note 13

Estimation and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience 
and other factors including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the 
group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

C) Current versus Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a)	 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in the company’s normal 
operating cycle;

b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c)	 it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d)	 it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, 
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
All assets and liabilities of the Group have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies 
Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of product and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle 
as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities:
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D) Revenue recognition

i. Sale of Products
To determine revenue recognition, the Company follows a 5-step process:
1.	 Identifying the contract with a customer 
2.	 Identifying the performance obligations 
3.	 Determining the transaction price 
4.	 Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations 
5.	 Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

Under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognised upon transfer of 
control of promised goods or services to customers. Revenue is measured at the transaction price 
agreed with the customers received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance 
bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if 
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of 
consideration is probable and determinable. Sales are recognised when control of the products 
has transferred, the customer has full discretion over price to sell/ use of the product, and there is 
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products

The Company is providing start to finish turnkey solutions, which includes supplying pharmaceutical 
machineries / equipment, in house designing engineering, procurement, installation, validation 
and to undertake other activities required in various projects including standalone equipment 
supply and installation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Company 
for goods supplied and services rendered, excluding trade discounts and applicable taxes. It is 
recognized when the following criteria are met:

•	 The control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer in accordance with the 
contractual terms.

•	 The revenue amount can be reliably measured.
•	 It is probable that the economic benefits from the transaction will flow to the Company.
•	 The costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. 

Revenue recognition is classified as follows:
i. Turnkey Contracts
Turnkey contracts typically involve the design, engineering, supply, installation, and commissioning 
of facilities and their internal infrastructure. The contract price is usually a fixed consideration that 
varies on a case-by-case basis.

Such contracts usually represent a single performance obligation, where control of goods and 
services is transferred progressively over the contract period. The performance obligation is 
considered satisfied upon the completion of contractual scope and formal customer acceptance. 
Contract revenue and related costs, where execution spans multiple accounting periods, are 
recognized based on actual shipments as of the reporting date.

ii. Sale of Services
Revenue from services such as management consultancy and installation services is recognized 
when the services are performed in accordance with the terms agreed with the customer. The 
transaction price represents the amount agreed with the customer, excluding trade discounts 
and applicable taxes.

iii. Export Incentive:  under various scheme notified by government has been recognized on the 
basis of credits afforded in the passbook or amount received.

iv. Interest & Dividend Income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

Income from dividend is recognized when right to receive payment is established
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v. Other Income

Other Incomes are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be 
measured reliably.

E) Product Warranty Expenses

The product warranties are supported by the vendor’s own warranty on the products. As this 
is a back-to-back warranty arrangement, no separate provision for warranty costs has been 
established. Any potential future warranty claims for the materials supplied will be covered by the 
Group’s vendor.

F) Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of 
acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation or accumulated impairment loss, if 
any.

Cost of item of property, plant and equipment includes purchase price, taxes, non- refundable 
duties, freight and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing assets to their working 
condition for their intended use. Expenses capitalized include applicable borrowing costs for 
qualifying assets, if any.

This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, 
plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or 
service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of 
the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises 
major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate 
items. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising 
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment is 
reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if any.
Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are recognized as capital work in progress.

G) Intangible assets, Amortization and useful live

Intangible assets that are acquired by the group are measured initially at cost. All intangible 
assets are with finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of business is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 
loss. Goodwill is assessed at every balance sheet date for any impairment.

Intangible assets are only recognized when it is probable that associated future economic benefits 
would flow to the Company.

Intangibles in respect of non- compete and customer relationships acquired in a business 
combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and 
are subsequently carried at costs less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.
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Class of Asset Useful life (in years) 

Furniture & Fixture 10

Motor Vehicle 6

Office Equipment 5

Computer and Peripherals 3

Asset Years

Software 6

Class of Asset Useful life as per 
Schedule II (in years) Useful life adopted (in years)

Furniture & Fixture – Leasehold 
Improvement

10 9

Intangible assets in respect of software’s acquired separately are measured on initial recognition 
at cost. Following initial recognition, they are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are derecognised either on their disposal or where no future economic benefits 
are expected from their use.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assets are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite u
seful lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses.

H) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful 
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimates of useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Leasehold Improvement is estimate to be depreciate over the period of lease terms of 9 years.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 
the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are 
recognized in statement of profit and loss within other income or other expenses.

Assets individually costing INR 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under non-current assets.

I) Amortisation of Intangible assets

Intangible assets except Goodwill are amortised in Statement of Profit or Loss over their estimated 
useful lives, from the date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of 
consumption of economic benefits of the asset. Accordingly, at present, these are being amortised 
on straight line basis.

The estimated useful lives of Intangible Assets are as follows:

Estimated useful life of following assets is different than useful life as prescribed in schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
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The useful lives are reviewed atleast at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are 
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

J) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment, capital work-in-progress, if any and 
intangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date, to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amounts are 
estimated at each reporting date. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows 
of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the cash generating 
unit exceeds the corresponding recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised. Impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent 
period unless the impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an exceptional 
nature that is not expected to recur, and subsequent external events have occurred that reverse 
the effect of that event.

K) Borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost

Borrowing costs, if any, that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such assets. 
A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready 
for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during 
which the active development is delayed beyond reasonable time due to other than temporary 
interruption. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

L) Inventories

Inventories of raw materials, components and stores, consumables and packing material are 
valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes purchase price, duties and taxes 
(other than those subsequently recoverable by the group from taxing authorities), freight inward 
and other expenditure in bringing inventories to present locations and conditions. In determining 
the cost, First-in-First-out (FIFO) method is used. The carrying costs of raw materials, components 
and stores and spare parts are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they 
will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
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Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The comparison of cost 
and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis. Cost comprises of direct material and 
labour expenses and an appropriate portion of production overheads incurred in bringing the 
inventory to their present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are allocated on 
the basis of normal capacity of the production facilities. Finished goods and work-in-progress 
inventory cost is determined on a weighted average cost basis.

Net Realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

M) Leases

The group has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts.

Group as a lessee

The Group, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing 
arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. The 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an 
identified asset and the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 
and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall 
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. 
The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, 
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. 
The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.

If that rate cannot be readily determined, the group uses incremental borrowing rate. For short-
term and low value leases, the group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. When the lease liability is remeasured due to change in 
contract terms, a corresponding change is made to the carrying amount of right-of-use asset, or 
is recorded in the profit and loss account if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset is reduced 
to zero.

Group as lessor

The Group as a lessor, classifies leases as either operating lease or finance lease. A lease is classified 
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 
an underlying asset. Initially asset held under finance lease is derecognised in balance sheet and 
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Finance income 
is recognized over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return 
on Company’s net investment in the lease. A lease which is not classified as a finance lease is an 
operating lease. Accordingly, the Company recognises lease payments as income on a straight-
line basis in case of assets given on operating leases. The Company presents underlying assets 
subject to operating lease in its balance sheet under the respective class of asset.

N) Employee benefits

The group’s obligation towards various employee benefits have been recognized as follows:

Short term benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employees services are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus 
and ex-gratia. 

Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies
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The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee 
services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees. The group 
recognizes a liability & expense for bonuses. The group recognizes a provision where contractually 
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Post-employment Benefits

Defined contribution plans

The group pays provident fund, employee state insurance and other regulatory funds contributions 
as per local regulations. The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions 
have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the 
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Defined benefit plans

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit schemes i.e. gratuity and post-retirement benefit schemes, the cost of 
providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation 
being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net 
defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. 
Such re-measurements are not re-classified to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the subsequent 
period. The service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a 
net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or 
when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.

The defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of 
the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits such as annual leave are 
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the 
group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected 
unit credit method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each year end balance sheet 
date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which 
they arise. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after 
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognized based on 
actuarial valuation.

Termination Benefits

Termination Benefits, in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits or Termination Benefits 
arising from restructuring, are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The group recognizes 
Termination Benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

(a) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of these benefits, or
(b) when the group recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and 
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to 
their present value.
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Employee Stock Option Plans

Employee stock options have time and performance based vesting conditions. The fair value as 
on grant date factoring such time and performance conditions is recognized as employee benefit 
expense over the vesting period of such options

O) Foreign exchange transactions

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the group operates. The consolidated financial statements 
are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Fabtech Technologies Limited’s functional and 
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances:

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions. Year-end monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the year-end foreign exchange rates. Non- Monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date of transaction. Non-monetary items, measured at fair value denominated in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates that existed when the fair value was 
determined.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items 
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair 
value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized 
in other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or profit and 
loss, respectively).

P) Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized 
as a finance cost. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the group or a present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation 
or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 

Contingent assets are generally not recognized but are disclosed when inflow of economic benefit 
is probable.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
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Q) Income taxes

Tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is 
based on taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it 
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further 
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group’s liability for current tax is calculated 
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using liability method. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred 
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 
is settled or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the carrying value of its 
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the 
same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and current 
tax liabilities within that jurisdiction and there is an intention to settle the asset & liability on a net 
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit and 
loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, in which case tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in 
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against 
future income tax liability. MAT is recognised as deferred tax assets in the Balance Sheet when the 
asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated 
with the asset will be realised.

R) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders of the group by the weighted average number of the equity shares 
outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit 
or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the group and the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

S) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
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Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial 
asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, 
the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it qualifies to recognized otherwise. However, trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at Transaction 
price.

(a) Financial assets

a. (i) Classification :

The group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
i. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, 
or through profit or loss), and
ii. those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the cash flows

i. Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held 
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument 
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the 
financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial 
assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI. However, the group 
recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in 
the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned while holding 
a FVTOCI instrument is reported as interest income using the effective interest rate method.
The group in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such 
an election is made by the group on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial 
recognition of such equity investments.

Fair value through the statement of profit and loss (FVTPL)
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Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income is carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss. Fair value changes are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss at each reporting period.

iii. Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances consist of:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and 
other short term deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of less than three months from the 
date of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
(ii) Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted 
for withdrawal and usage.

iv. Impairment of financial assets:

The group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets and unbilled revenues which are not fair valued through profit or loss.
The group recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables and unbilled 
revenues that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets whose credit 
risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months 
expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses 
is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial 
recognition. The Impairment losses and reversals are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

v. De-recognition of financial assets

The group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the group 
recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have 
to pay. If the group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a 
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. On de-recognition of a Financial Asset (except 
for Financial Assets measured at FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the 
consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the group 
are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net 
of direct issue costs. 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the 
time value of money is significant. Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are 
initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) 
and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in 
the statement of profit and loss.
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De-recognition of financial liabilities

The group de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the group’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The differences between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

The Group engages in forward contracts primarily to mitigate risks arising from fluctuations in 
foreign currency related to its existing financial assets and liabilities, specific commitments, and 
anticipated transactions. These derivative contracts are used exclusively for hedging purposes 
and are not employed for trading or speculative activities.

In its hedging strategy, the Company designates certain instruments, including derivatives and, 
in some cases, non-derivative financial instruments related to foreign currency risk, as fair value 
hedges. For hedges involving foreign exchange risk on commitments, the Company also applies 
fair value hedge accounting.

Under fair value hedge, any changes in the fair value of the designated portion of the hedging 
instruments that qualify are recognized immediately in the profit or loss statement. This is done 
in conjunction with the recognition of any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability 
attributable to the hedged risk.

Derivatives are initially recognized and measured at fair value from the date the derivative 
contract is entered into. Subsequently, they are re-measured at their fair value at the end of each 
reporting period.

T) Business Combinations

Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, except 
for common control transactions which are accounted using the pooling of interest method that 
is accounted at carrying values. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the 
assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date i.e. 
the date on which control is acquired.

Goodwill arising on business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for noncontrolling 
interests, and any previous interest held, over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and 
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses if any.

U) Segment Reporting

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the information reported to the 
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment 
of segment performance based on product and services.

V) Non-current assets held for sale

 Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held 
for sale’ if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use and a sale is considered high probable to be concluded within 12 
months from the balance sheet date.

Such non-current assets or disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets including those that are part of a disposal 
group held for sale are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale.
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4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as issued from time to 
time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments 
to the existing standards applicable to the group.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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44 Employee Benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

ii) Defined Benefit Plan
Description of Plans

Gratuity & Pension

The disclosure in respect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below:

A. Balance Sheet

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Present value of plan liabilities 215.91                              186.31                              
Fair value of plan assets (147.02)                             (101.70)                             
(Asset) / Liability recognised 68.89                                84.60                                

B. Movements in plan liabilities

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

As at the beginning of the year 186.31                              156.28                              
Current service cost 19.56                                18.58                                
Adjustment on account of acquisition of subsidiary -                                    24.55                                
Interest Cost/(Income) 12.44                                13.40                                
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions -                                    -                                    
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 7.72                                  4.51                                  
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 9.72                                  (2.80)                                 
Benefit payments (19.84)                               (28.21)                               
As at the end of the year 215.91                              186.31                              

C. Movements in plan assets

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

As at the beginning of the year 101.70                              7.67                                  
Interest Income 6.59                                  0.57                                  
Contributions by the Employer 51.98                                100.00                              
(Benefits Paid from the Fund) (14.04)                               (9.49)                                 
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.78                                  2.95                                  
As at the end of the year 147.02                              101.70                              

D. Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Employee Benefits Expense:
Current service cost 19.56                                18.58                                
Interest cost/(income) 5.84                                  12.82                                
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 25.41                                31.40                                
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/(cost) (0.78)                                 (2.95)                                 
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions 7.72                                  4.51                                  
Experience gains/(losses) 9.72                                  (2.80)                                 
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 16.66                                (1.24)                                 

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund and Pension
Fund, which is a defined contribution plan. The company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contribution that are not due to be paid
until the end of reporting period. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and Pension Fund for the year aggregated to:
INR 61.60 lakhs March 31, 2025
INR 50.31 lakhs March 31, 2024

Retirement Benefit Plans of the Company include Gratuity and Leave Encashment.

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lumpsum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of
service, subject to a payment ceiling of INR 20 lakhs. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. However, the completion of vesting period is not applicable
in the case where termination of employment is due to death or permanent disability. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on
the reporting date.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
E. Assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Financial Assumptions:
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 6.78% 7.21%
Discount rate 6.78% 7.21%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality Rate: Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality 2012-14 
(Urban)

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality 2012-14 
(Urban)

Employee turnover

For service 4 years and 
below 20.00% p.a. For 
service 5 years and 
above 2.00% p.a.

For service 4 years and 
below 20.00% p.a. For 
service 5 years and 
above 2.00% p.a.

F. Sensitivity

Impact on defined benefit obligation
As at 

 March 31, 2025
As at 

 March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions                                215.91 186.31                              
Change in assumption

Discount rate
Increase by 1% (17.18)                               (14.73)                               
Decrease by 1% 20.13                                17.28                                

Salary escalation rate
Increase by 1% 15.83                                13.72                                
Decrease by 1% (15.08)                               (13.92)                               

Withdrawal rate
Increase by 1% 1.36                                  1.91                                  
Decrease by 1% (1.56)                                 (2.16)                                 

G. The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows:

Expected payment for the future years As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Within the next 12 months 37.88                                37.25                                
Between 1 and 2 years 7.17                                  6.00                                  
Between 2 and 3 years 7.63                                  6.53                                  
Between 3 and 4 years 16.31                                6.98                                  
Between 4 and 5 years 41.08                                14.35                                
Between 6 and 10 years 37.16                                60.16                                
11 year and thereafter 307.19                              284.05                              

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Particulars

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are
set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognised in the balance sheet. There was no
change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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J. Qualitative Disclosures

iii) Other Long Term Benefit Plan (Privilege Leave Benefits)

The following table sets out the non funded status of the Privilege Leave benefits and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements.

A. Change in Present Value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 87.57                                83.73                                
Adjustment on account of acquisition of subsidiary -                                    11.70                                
Current service cost 18.08                                18.07                                
Interest Cost/(Income) 6.07                                  7.25                                  
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions -                                    -                                    
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 3.16                                  1.92                                  
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 2.79                                  (9.98)                                 
Benefits paid (17.19)                               (25.11)                               
As at the end of the year 100.48                              87.57                                

B. Balance Sheet

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Present value of plan Unfunded Obligations 100.48                              87.57                                
Fair value of plan assets -                                    -                                    
(Asset) / Liability recognised 100.48                              87.57                                

C. Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Current service cost 18.08                                18.07                                
Interest cost/(income) 6.07                                  7.25                                  
Acturial loss/(gain) 5.95                                  (8.06)                                 
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 30.10                                17.25                                

Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit plan
The entity has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The entity’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires 
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.
The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the 
definition of the investment strategy.

Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and entity is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the 
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the 
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of 
the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively 
balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this 
generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although 
probability of this is very low as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory guidelines which mitigate risk.

Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plans
During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

Para 147 (a)
A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962.
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46 Financial Instruments

a) Category-wise classification of Financial instruments
The carrying value and fair values of financial instruments by class are as follows:

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets measured at cost

Investment -                                  0.10                                
Loans and Advances 354.77                            329.38                            
Cash and bank balances 905.56                            2,899.17                         
Bank balances other than above 2,595.42                         1,718.01                         
Trade receivables 15,073.61                       9,665.85                         
Other financial assets 3,925.87                         2,621.32                         

22,855.24                       17,233.83                       

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities measured at cost

Lease Liabilities 2,920.43                         283.69                            
Borrowings 5,462.09                         987.74                            
Trade payables 9,880.29                         6,506.11                         
Other Financial Liability 28.31                              108.08                            

18,291.13                       7,885.62                         

b) Fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at March 31, 2025
Financial Assets

Investments 642.56                            -                                  832.22                            
Security Deposits -                                  -                                  274.31                            

Financial Liabilities
Lease Liability -                                  -                                  -                                  

As at March 31, 2024
Financial Assets

Investments 2,099.99                         -                                  0.10                                
Security Deposits -                                  -                                  213.81                            

Financial Liabilities
Lease Liability -                                  -                                  -                                  

c) Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data -
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole
or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor they are based on
available market data.
For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as at Balance Sheet date, the classification of fair value calculations by category is summarized below:

Particulars

Fair value through profit or loss

i) The Company has assessed that cash and bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

ii) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially
all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of
respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

iii) There have been no transfers between Level 1, level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

b) Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs -
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observables for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This level of hierarchy includes Company’s derivative contracts.

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 & 3 - Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies.

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest prior ity to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The categories used are as follows:
a) Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market -
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of
investment in quoted equity shares.
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47 Financial Risk Management

I

a)

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Monetary Liabilities
US Dollar

Value in Foreign Currency 50.64                              69.51                              
Value in INR 4,328.78                         5,793.23                         

Euro in India
Value in Foreign Currency 5.30                                4.72                                

Value in INR 490.00                            425.56                            
SAR in India

Value in Foreign Currency 21.98                              13.95                              
Value in INR 501.23                            310.00                            

EGP in India
Value in Foreign Currency 6.18                                0.85                                

Value in INR 10.45                              1.50                                
BDT in India

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  2.01                                
Value in INR -                                  1.51                                

NGN in India
Value in Foreign Currency -                                  5.69                                

Value in INR -                                  0.34                                
DZD in India

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  2.96                                
Value in INR -                                  1.84                                

AED in India
Value in Foreign Currency -                                  -                                  

Value in INR -                                  -                                  
KES in India

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  -                                  
Value in INR -                                  -                                  

Monetary Assets
US Dollar in India

Value in Foreign Currency 106.55                            110.16                            
Value in INR 9,105.35                         9,180.90                         

Euro in India
Value in Foreign Currency 3.83                                1.78                                

Value in INR 354.09                            159.91                            
AED in India

Value in Foreign Currency 0.74                                0.15                                
Value in INR 17.33                              3.29                                

SAR in India
Value in Foreign Currency 2.73                                7.91                                

Value in INR 62.16                              175.77                            
EGP in India

Value in Foreign Currency -                                  -                                  
Value in INR -                                  -                                  

DZD in India
Value in Foreign Currency -                                  73.02                              

Value in INR -                                  45.27                              

i) The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:

A 10% appreciation/depreciation of the foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company would result in an decrease/ increase (net) in the Company’s net profit before
tax by approximately:
INR 420.85 lakhs - March 31, 2025
INR 303.12 lakhs - March 31, 2024

Market risk - Foreign currency exchange rate risk: The Company enter into sale and purchase transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Management monitors the movement in foreign currency and the Company’s exposure in each of the foreign currency. Based on the analysis and study of movement in
foreign currency, the Company takes remidial measures to hedge foreign currency risk through measures like forward currency con tracts etc.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations.
The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. The risk management framework aims to:

(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.
(ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance .

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market
movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.
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ii) Forward Exchange Contracts:

As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

USD
- No. of Contracts 1.00                                1.00                                
- Amount in Foreign Currency 10.00                              10.00                              

iii) Transaction in Foreign Currency

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Expenditure in Foreign Currencies 2,280.08                         2,222.14                         

Earnings in Foreign Currencies
FOB Value of Export Sales 19,896.93                       17,276.93                       
Installation & commissioning services 2.51                                1,838.31                         

Value of Imports on CIF Basis 1,069.06                         831.07                            

b)

II Credit risk:

II Liquidity risk:

Particulars Carrying Amount Undiscounted amount 
payable Total

within 1 year
As at March 31, 2025
Non-derivative liabilities

Borrowings 5,462.09                          5,408.64                          5,462.09                          
Trade payables 9,880.29                          9,880.29                          9,880.29                          
Other current liabilities 6,295.07                          6,295.07                          6,295.07                          
Provisions 169.37                             87.35                               169.37                             

As at March 31, 2024
Non-derivative liabilities

Borrowings 987.74                            960.06                            987.74                            
Trade payables 6,506.11                         6,506.11                         6,506.11                         
Other current liabilities 5,585.12                         5,585.12                         5,585.12                         
Provisions 172.18                            89.53                              172.18                            

The credit risk on bank balances and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are
available for use as per requirements. The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed
deposits and liquid mutual funds, which carry no or low market risk. The Company’s liquidity position remains strong at:
INR 4,143.54 lakhs as at March 31, 2025
INR 6,717.17 lakhs as at March 31, 2024
comprising of cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and current investments.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the company’s financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance
Sheet date.

Currency

Market risk - Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.
The Company’s policy is to maintain a balance of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings and the proportion of fixed and floating rate debt is determined by current market interest rates.
The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in Indian Rupees and US dollars with mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. These exposures are reviewed by appropriate
levels of management at regular interval.

The Group has outstanding borrowings of INR 5,462.09 lakhs and INR 987.74 lakhs at the end of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk
of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of Cash & bank balances, trade
receivables, finance receivables and loans and advances. Company regularly reviews the credit limits of the customers and takes action to reduce the risk. Further diverse and large customer
bases also reduces the risk. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on quarterly basis.
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48 Related Party Disclosure under Ind AS 24

I List of Related Parties
a. Promotors/Directors

1. Mr. Aasif Khan, Promoter
2. Mr. Hemant Anavkar, Director
3. Mrs. Naseem Khan, Director (Upto 02-01-2024)
4. Mr. Amjad Arbani, Non-Executive Director (From 13-07-2024)
5. Mr. Aarif Khan, Promoter
6. Mr. Chirag Doshi, Nominee Director (From 16-01-2023 upto 04-06-2024), Non-Executive Director (From 06-06-2024)
7. Mr. Shyam Nagorao Khante, Independent Director (From 26-06-2024)
8. Mrs. Aparna Sharma, Independent Director (From 03-04-2024)
9. Mr.Naushad Panjwani, Independent Director (From 30-07-2024) and Chairman (from 17-02-2025)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 157



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 158



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 159



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 160



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 161



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 162



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 163



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 
(Amount in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

25166931BMNPUY8229

Annual Report 2024-25  |  fabtechnologies.com

Page 164



NOTICE OF 7TH (SEVENTH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 07th (Seventh) Annual General Meeting of FABTECH TECHNOLOGIES 
LIMITED (Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited) will be held on Monday, 
September 15, 2025 at 01:00 P.M. IST through Video Conference or Other Audio Video Means to 
transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Audited financial statements, 
including the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Profit and Loss account for the 
year ended on that date together with the schedules and notes attached thereto for the 
year ended 31st March 2025 along with the reports of Board of Directors and the Auditors  
thereon. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
“RESOLVED THAT the audited Standalone and Consolidated financial statements, 
Profit and Loss account together with the schedules and notes attached thereto of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby 
received, considered and adopted.” 

2.	 To appoint Mr. Chirag Himatlal Doshi (DIN: 08532321), Non-Executive Director, who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Non-Executive 
Director. 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 
Chirag Himatlal Doshi (DIN: 08532321), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being 
eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

3.	 To re-appoint M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera (FRN: 018796C), Chartered Accountants 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of five years and fix their 
remuneration. 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, Section 142 and Regulation 
36(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) 
and based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, 
M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera (FRN: 018796C), Chartered Accountants be and are hereby re-
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of five years to hold 
office from the conclusion of 7th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 12th Annual 
General Meeting on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the 
Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise and to do all such 
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose of 
giving effect to this Resolution”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.	 To appoint M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co., Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company for the term of 5 (five) consecutive years:  
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Regulation 24A and Regulation 36(5) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, read with the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory 
amendment(s), modification(s), clarification(s), substitution(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force) and as per the recommendations of Board of 
Directors of the Company, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for the 
appointment of M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co, Company Secretaries, (Peer review No. 1977/2022) 
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 (five) 
consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till 
the conclusion of the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2030, who shall conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company 
from the financial year ended March 31, 2025 to the financial Year ended March 31, 2030. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to determine the 
remuneration of the Secretarial Auditors including revision in the remuneration during the 
tenure, and to file necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such 
acts, deeds and things, as may be necessary, to give effect to the above resolution, and 
to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

5.	 To consider and maintain Statutory Registers at a place other than the Registered Office 
of the Company 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 94 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to keep and maintain the statutory registers of 
the Company (excluding Register of Members, Index of Members, Register and Index 
of Debenture holders) and the copies of all annual returns and copies of certificates 
and documents required to be annexed thereto at its corporate office situated at ABR 
Emerald, 1st Floor, Plot No D8,Street 16, MIDC Central Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 
400093, Maharashtra, India w.e.f. 02nd August 2025. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Register of Members, the Index of Members, the Register 
and Index of Debenture holders and copies of certificates and documents required to be 
annexed thereto, be kept at the office of M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited (RTA of the 
Company),  S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Center, Mahakali Caves 
Road, Andheri East, Mumbai-400 093, Maharashtra, India, instead of at the Registered 
Office of the Company, so long as they are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the 
Company.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts and 
deeds as it may consider necessary, expedient or desirable, in order to give effect to the 
foregoing resolution or otherwise as considered by the Board to be in the best interest of the 
Company.” 

By the Order of the Board
For Fabtech Technologies Limited
(Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

Sd/- 
Neetu Buchasia
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
M. No.: A61496

Registered Office: 715, Janki Center Off. Veera Desai Road,
Andheri West, Mumbai City, Maharashtra, India, 400053.
Corporate office: ABR Emerald, 1st Floor, Plot No D8, Street 16,
MIDC Central Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093, Maharashtra, India 

Date: August 02, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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Notes:

1.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) inter-alia vide its General Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 
dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, followed by General Circular Nos. 
20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest 
being Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred to as “MCA 
Circulars”) has permitted the holding of the annual general meeting through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) or through other audio-visual means (“OAVM”), without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held 
through VC / OAVM.

2.	 The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of 
the Company situated at 715, Janki Centre, Off Veera Desai Road, Andheri West, Mumbai 
- 400053 which shall be the deemed Venue of the AGM Pursuant to the provisions of the 
Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. 
However, since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, 
physical attendance of Shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility 
for appointment of proxies by the Shareholders will not be available for the AGM and 
hence the Proxy Form is not annexed to this Notice. Any Body Corporate is entitled to 
appoint an authorized representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM, participate 
there at.

3.	 Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical 
attendance of Shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly, Attendance Slip is not 
annexed to this Notice.

4.	 Corporate shareholders are requested to send to the Company, a duly certified copy 
of the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the AGM. 
The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its 
registered email address to cs@fabtechnologies.com.

5.	 Shareholders seeking any information with regard to any matter to be placed at the 
AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before 10th September, 2025 through 
email on cs@fabtechnologies.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

6.	 In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM alongwith Annual 
Report is being sent only through electronic mode to those Shareholders whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company. Members may kindly note that notice for 
convening this AGM and Annual Report for F.Y. 2024-25 will also be available on the 
website of the Company at www.fabtechnologies.com

7.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this 
Notice.

8.	 Shareholders attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

9.	 The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts 
or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 will be available electronically for inspection by the Members. 
All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection 
without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date 
of 7th AGM, i.e. 15th September, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents can 
send an email to cs@fabtechnologies.com stating their name and DP/ Client ID/ Folio No.
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10.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 107 of the Companies Act, 2013, the voting on the 
resolutions set out in the Notice of the AGM shall be conducted by show of hands, unless 
a demand for poll is made in accordance with the said Act.

11.	 Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolution proposed in the Notice 
shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting.

12.	 Pursuant Secretarial Standard 2, the details of the Director proposed to be re-appointed 
in the AGM are provided under Annexure-A.

13.	 Pursuantto provisions of Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details of Statutory Auditors, M/s. Ajmera & Ajmera, 
Chartered Accountants, proposed to be re-appointed in the AGM are provided under 
Annexure – B. 

14.	 The Designated Email Address for the Company is  cs@fabtechnologies.com. 
Shareholders in case of any query may send an email to investors@fabtechnologies.com 

15.	 The Link to attend the Zoom Meeting is
“https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81746271196?pwd=mZ3gzqxkX7OIx3dulwEdJnn83du9Fb.1” 
Meeting ID: 817 4627 1196 
Passcode: 530284
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Sr.No. Particulars Details

1 Proposed Secretarial 
Auditor

M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries

2 Basis of Recommendation After evaluating all proposals and considering various factors such as 
independence, industry experience, technical skills, geographical presence, 
audit team, audit quality reports, etc., M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co., has been 
recommended to be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company.
The Company has received written consent from M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co. and 
a certificate that they satisfy the qualification criteria provided under SEBI 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/ CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 
(“SEBI Circular”) and that the appointment, if made, shall be in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules framed thereunder, SEBI 
Listing Regulations, SEBI Circular and other applicable circulars, if any, in this 
regard. The firm has agreed to the said appointment, and confirmed that their 
appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under the Act. They 
have further confirmed that they are eligible for the proposed appointment 
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company and have not incurred any of the 
disqualifications as specified vide the said SEBI Circular.
While recommending M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co. for appointment, the Board and 
the Audit Committee evaluated various factors, including the firm’s capability 
to handle a diverse and complex business environment, its existing experience 
in the Company’s business segments, its industry standing, the clientele it 
serves, and its technical expertise. M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co. was found to be well-
equipped to manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company.

3 Credentials of Proposed 
Secretarial Auditor

M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co. (a peer reviewed firm: 1977/2022), Company Secretaries, 
established in April 2011, is a professionally managed firm offering expert 
advisory services in Company Law, LLPs, Corporate Laws, Legal Drafting, 
Trademarks, and related areas. With over 14 years of experience, the firm—led 
by founder Mr. Kiran Prafulkumar Doshi, a B.Com, FCS, and LLB—has handled a 
wide range of assignments including IPO, mergers, acquisitions, due diligence, 
compliance management, company formation, joint ventures, trademark 
registration, and regulatory representation. Backed by a skilled team, the firm 
delivers strategic, up-to-date, and personalized solutions to its clients across 
sectors.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 4: TO APPOINT KIRAN DOSHI & CO., COMPANY SECRETARIES, AS SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
FOR THE TERM OF 5 (FIVE) CONSECUTIVE YEARS:

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on August 02, 2025, has recommended the appointment 
of M/s. Kiran Doshi & Co, Company Secretaries (Peer review No. 1977/2022), as the Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013, and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years starting from the conclusion of this Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of the 12th Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2030, subject to approval by the Members at this Annual General Meeting.

The details required to be disclosed under provisions of Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as under:
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Sr.No. Particulars Details

4 Term of Appointment For a period of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from the conclusion 
of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 12th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial year ended March 31, 2030.

5 Proposed Fees Rs 75,000/- (excluding tax and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses) for 
FY 2025-26.
The authority to decide the remuneration for the balance period of the tenure 
has been delegated to the Board of Directors which shall be decided mutually 
by them and the secretarial auditor.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and their relatives are in any way concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution, except to the extent of their respective 
shareholdings, if any, in the Company.
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by 
the members as Ordinary resolution.
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ITEM NO. 5: TO CONSIDER AND MAINTAIN STATUTORY REGISTERS AT A PLACE OTHER THAN THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

In order to facilitate better administration and in the interest of operational and administrative 
convenience, the Board of Directors in the meeting held on August 02, 2025 approved to maintain 
the Statutory Registers of the Company and copies of annual returns at the Company’s corporate 
office situated at 1st Floor, ABR Emerald, Plot No D8, Street 16, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 
400093, Maharashtra, India.

The Company’s majority shareholding in the form of Equity Shareholding is held in electronic 
mode i.e., dematerialised form. Accordingly, it is requested to approve the keeping Registers of 
members at the office of M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited, Registrars and Transfer Agents 
(‘RTA’) of the Company at S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Center, Mahakali 
Caves Road, Andheri East, Mumbai-400 093, Maharashtra, India and/or at such other place where 
the RTA may shift its office within Mumbai from time to time.

Section 94 of the Act permits the Company to maintain its Registers and Annual Returns at any 
place other than its Registered Office subject to the Members’ approval by way of a Special 
Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any 
way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution set out under Item 
No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Resolutions set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the 
members.

By the Order of the Board
For Fabtech Technologies Limited
(Formerly known as Fabtech Technologies Private Limited)

Sd/- 
Neetu Buchasia
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
M. No.: A61496

Registered Office: 715, Janki Center Off. Veera Desai Road,
Andheri West, Mumbai City, Maharashtra, India, 400053.

Corporate office: ABR Emerald, 1st Floor, Plot No D8, Street 16,
MIDC Central Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093, Maharashtra, India

Date: August 02, 2025 
Place: Mumbai
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Name of the Director Chirag Himatlal Doshi

Date of Birth 15/09/1981

Qualifications Chartered Accountant, a member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Experience Mr. Chirag Doshi is a director on the board of Energize Management 
Private Limited; Sejal Glass Limited; CD Letsconnect Experts Private 
Limited and Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms Limited. He is a 
designated partner of CD Financial ReEngineering Advisors LLP, which is 
engaged in the business of offering financial and business advisory. He 
holds an experience of more than a decade in financial and business 
consultancy.

Terms and conditions of re-appointment To be re-appointed as a Non-Executive Director liable to retire by 
rotation.

Details of remuneration sought to be paid No remuneration is paid to Mr. Chirag Doshi by the Company. He only 
receives sitting for attended Board/ Committee Meetings.

Remuneration last drawn Not Applicable

Date of first appointment on the Board 06/06/2024

Shareholding in the company Nil

Relationship with other Directors, Manager 
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 
company

No relation

Number of Meetings of the Board attended 
during the financial year

Mr. Chirag Doshi attended 7 Board Meetings in the Financial Year 2024-
25.

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees Mr. Chirag Doshi in our Company is chairperson of one Committee and 
a member of 4 Committees.

List of the directorships held in other 
companies

As per the below mentioned table

Sr 
No.

Names of the Companies /bodies 
corporate/ firms/ association of 

individuals

Designation Date of appointment

1. Sejal Glass Limited Director 17/05/2021

2. Fabtech Technologies Cleanrooms 
Limited

Director 16/05/2024

3. CD Letsconnect Experts Private 
Limited

Director 20/07/2020

4. Energize Management Private 
Limited

Director 14/03/2023

5. Garware Hi-Tech Films Limited Director 01/09/2024

6. CD Financial Reengineering 
Advisors LLP

Designated Partner 08/10/2019

ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 2 OF THE NOTICE

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting pursuant 
to Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings:

Item No. 2:

List of Directorship/Designated Partnership held by Mr. Chirag Doshi in other Companies:
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Sr 
No.

Particulars Details

1. Proposed Statutory Auditor M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera (FRN: 018796C)

2. Basis of Recommendation After evaluating all proposals and considering various factors 
such as independence, industry experience, technical skills, 
geographical presence, audit team, audit quality reports, 
etc., M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera, has been recommended to be 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.
The Company has received written consent from M/s. Ajmera 
and Ajmera and an eligibility certificate that they satisfy 
the qualification criteria. The firm has agreed to the said 
appointment, and confirmed that their appointment, if made, 
would be within the limits specified under the Act. They have 
further confirmed that they are eligible for the proposed 
appointment as Statutory Auditor of the Company and have 
not incurred any of the disqualifications.
While recommending M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera for 
appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee evaluated 
various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle 
a diverse and complex business environment, its existing 
experience in the Company’s business segments, its industry 
standing, the clientele it serves, and its technical expertise. 
M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera was found to be well-equipped to 
manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with 
the Statutory Audit of the Company.

3. Credentials of Proposed Statutory Auditor Ajmera & Ajmera, Chartered Accountants, is a firm of 
Chartered Accountants practicing since 2013. The firm is 
serving clients in diverse fields and has a solid foundation 
with a strong background in financial accounting, audits, 
taxation, business advisory services and other areas of 
corporate consultancy. 
Within a short span of time with the experience of its partners, 
the firm has catered to various industries and maintained 
recognition and goodwill among its esteemed clients. The 
firm operates its activities from 5 locations in India. The firm 
has maintained an excellent relationship with its clientele and 
has always delivered exceptional service to clients across the 
globe in Corporate Advisory, Audit Assurance, MAHARERA, Tax 
management, Management Consultancy and Corporate & 
Allied Law Services.

4. Term of Appointment For a period of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing 
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till 
the conclusion of the 12th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held for the financial year ended March 31, 
2030.

5. Proposed Fees Rs 12,00,000/- (excluding tax and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses) for FY 2025-26.
The authority to decide the remuneration for the balance 
period of the tenure has been delegated to the Board of 
Directors which shall be decided mutually by them and the 
Statutory auditor.

ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 3 OF THE NOTICE

Item No. 3: To re-appoint M/s. Ajmera and Ajmera (FRN: 018796C), Chartered Accountants as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of five years and fix their remuneration.

The details required to be disclosed under provisions of Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as under
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